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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatednbelasheets of Taiwan Semiconductor
Manufacturing Company Limited and subsidiaries BSeptember 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income and ftask for the nine months then ended. These
consolidated financial statements are the respitigsibf the Company’'s management. Our
responsibility is to issue a report on these cadatdd financial statements based on our reviews.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with Statéme Auditing Standards No. 36, “Review
of Financial Statements,” issued by the Auditingrsards Committee of the Accounting Research
and Development Foundation of the Republic of ChinA review consists principally of
applying analytical procedures to financial data amking inquiries of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters. It is substélgtiess in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedejt the Republic of China, the objective of
which is the expression of an opinion regarding ¢besolidated financial statements taken as a
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such aniopin

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any mataodifications that should be made to the
consolidated financial statements referred to abfmrethem to be in conformity with the

Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financiepdtts by Securities Issuers and accounting
principles generally accepted in the Republic oih&h

October 21, 2011

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsntended only to present the consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cdkiws in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the RepubliCluha and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practices to revieeh onsolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the RepwblChina.

For the convenience of readers, the accountantsiiere report and the accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been traedlénto English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of Chin&there is any conflict between the English
version and the original Chinese version or anyedénce in the interpretation of the two versions,
the Chinese-language accountants’ review report apndsolidated financial statements shall
prevail.



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Vaie)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2011 2010 2011 2010
ASSETS Amount % Amount % LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSETS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4) $ 114,836,459 16 $ 132,268,758 20 Short-term loans (Note 15) $ 36,019,654 5 $ 37,910,282 6
Financial assets at fair value through profit asi¢Notes 2, 5 and 26) 606,492 - 20,360 - Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss (Notes 2, 5 and 26) 210,610 74,741 -
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2, 6 26)1 3,255,050 - 29,320,698 5 Hedging derivative financial liabilities (Notes 21 and 26) 356 - 1,065 -
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2, 7 aéjl 2 1,566,469 - 5,598,471 1 Accounts payable 9,163,393 1 11,474,968 2
Receivables from related parties (Notes 3 and 27) 578,676 - 11,295 - Payables to related parties (Note 27) 1,361,191 - 1,617,629 -
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 3) 51,497,741 7 54,754,753 8 Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 20) 7,692,817 1 5,303,113 1
Allowance for doubtful receivables (Notes 2, 3 &)d (490,973) - (587,974) - Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonusriectbrs and supervisors
Allowance for sales returns and others (Notes 2&nd (6,126,174) 1) (6,796,624) 1) (Notes 2 and 22) 6,985,989 1 8,310,705 1
Other receivables from related parties (Notes 32amd 133,899 - 204,665 - Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers 21,179,608 3 26,644,580 4
Other financial assets (Note 28) 960,903 - 1,017,211 - Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiest¢Nd8, 26 and 30) 21,219,689 3 17,028,193 2
Inventories (Notes 2 and 9) 25,692,239 4 26,663,415 4 Current portion of bonds payable and long-termktiaans (Notes 16, 17, 26 4,531,250 1 870,663 -
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 20) 1,093,295 - 2,201,161 - and 28)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,332,485 1 1,960,989 -
Total current liabilities 108,364,557 15 109,235,939 16
Total current assets 196,936,561 27 246,637,178 37
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS (Notes 2, 6, 7, 10, 12 and 26 Bonds payable (Notes 16 and 26) 18,000,000 3 4,500,000 1
Investments accounted for using equity method 24,864,502 3 25,298,067 4 Long-term bank loans (Notes 17, 26 and 28) 1,618,750 - 362,952 -
Available-for-sale financial assets - - 1,036,502 - Other long-term payables (Notes 18, 26 and 30) - - 6,827,878 1
Held-to-maturity financial assets 7,216,789 1 8,984,875 1 Obligations under capital leases (Notes 2, 132&)d 725,137 - 707,047 -
Financial assets carried at cost 4,392,806 1 4,464,801 1
Total long-term liabilities 20,343,887 3 12,397,877 2
Total long-term investments 36,474,097 5 39,784,245 6
OTHER LIABILITIES
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 13, 27 &8) Accrued pension cost (Notes 2 and 19) 3,889,475 - 3,803,882 1
Cost Guarantee deposits (Note 30) 512,224 - 836,908 -
Land and land improvements 1,548,045 - 916,213 - Deferred credits 30,474 - 131,790 -
Buildings 170,322,976 23 145,349,549 22 Others 377,260 - 241,576 -
Machinery and equipment 1,036,774,966 141 898,675,883 135
Office equipment 16,498,166 3 14,414,922 2 Total other liabilities 4,809,433 - 5,014,156 1
Leased assets 731,744 - 713,821 -
1,225,875,897 167 1,060,070,388 159 Total liabilities 133,517,877 18 126,647,972 19
Accumulated depreciation (850,006,367) (116) (753,541,185) (113)
Advance payments and construction in progress 97,083,692 13 42,650,005 6 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Capital stock - NT$10 par value (Note 22)
Net property, plant and equipment 472,953,222 64 349,179,208 52 Authorized: 28,050,000 thousand shares
Issued: 25,915,149 thousand shares in 2011
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25,907,344 thousand shares in 2010 259,151,492 35 259,073,440 39
Goodwill (Note 2) 5,730,237 1 5,835,954 1
Deferred charges, net (Notes 2 and 14) 5,133,989 1 6,218,321 1 Capital surplus (Notes 2 and 22) 55,689,739 8 55,634,070 8
Retained earnings (Note 22)
Total intangible assets 10,864,226 2 12,054,275 2 Appropriated as legal capital reserve 102,399,995 14 86,239,494 13
Appropriated as special capital reserve 6,433,874 1 1,313,047 -
OTHER ASSETS Unappropriated earnings 181,838,097 25 137,506,581 21
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 20) 11,281,440 1 10,414,275 2 290,671,966 40 225,059,122 34
Refundable deposits 4,716,699 1 9,099,831 1 Others (Notes 2, 11, 24 and 26)
Others (Notes 2 and 28) 1,414,842 - 383,037 - Cumulative translation adjustments (5,586,618) 1) (3,761,669) 1)
Unrealized gain (loss) on financial instruments (1,226,783) - 518,669 -
Total other assets 17,412,981 2 19,897,143 3 Treasury stock: 1,000 thousand shares (71,598) - - -
(6,884,999) 1) (3,243,000) 1)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 598,628,198 82 536,523,632 80
MINORITY INTERESTS (Note 2) 2,495,012 - 4,380,445 1
Total shareholders’ equity 601,123,210 82 540,904,077 81
TOTAL $ 734,641,087 100 $ 667,552,049 100 TOTAL $ 734,641,087 100 $ 667,552,049 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidated financial statements.



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 20

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

GROSS SALES (Notes anc 27)

SALES RETURNS AND ALLOWANCES
(Notes 2 and 8)

NET SALES
COST OF SALES (Nos 9, 21 and7)
GROSS PROFI

OPERATING EXPENSES (Nos 21 and 17)
Research and developm
General and administrati
Marketing

Total operatingexpense
INCOME FROM OPERATION:

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS

Interestincome

Equity in earnings of equity method investees
(Notes 2 and 10)

Valuation gain on financial instruments, r
(Notes 2, 5 and 26)

Settlement income (No3C)

Technical service income (Not27 and3()

Gair onsettlement and dispo: of financialassts,
net (Notes 2 and 26)

Gain on disposal of pperty, plant and equipmer
and other assets (Notes 2 and 27)

Otheis (Note 27

Total non-operatingincome and gain

2011 201C
Amount % Amount %
$ 325,782,89 $ 318,388,37
3,413,421 8,992,668

322,369,47 10C 309,395,70 10C
175,072,14 54 157,159,32 51
147,297,33 46 152,26,37¢ 49
25,076,00 8 21,634,73 7
10,253,59 3 8,978,51. 3
3,340,37! 1 3,961,27! 1
38,669,97 12 34,574,551 11
108,627,36 34 117,661,85 38
1,011,611 1 1,245,00( -
916,644 - 1,608,430 1
600,902 - 156,038 -
492,871 - 6,343,522 2
325,19 - 359,32 -
204,810 - 309,160 -
191,588 - 144,897 -
628,65 - 396,16( -
4,372,228 1 10,562,52 3

(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2.0
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2011 201
Amount % Amount %
NON-OPERATING EXPENSE AND LOSSES

Interestexpens $ 420,71 - $ 302,23! -
Foreigr exchange loss, net (Note 384,77t - - -

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equip
(Note 2) 194,539 - 981 -
Impairment ofinancia asset (Notes 2, 12 and 2 104,98: - 112,75¢ -
Casualty loss (Note - - 190,99: -
Otheis (Note 2 367,57. - 22933: -
Total non-operatingexpense and losse 1,472,58 - 836,30( -
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TA) 111,527,05 35 127,388,08 41
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 an«() 8,638,26. 3 5,973,08! 2
NET INCOME $102,888,79 2 $121,415,00 g

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Shareholders of the par $ 102,622,63 32 $ 120,884,56 39
Minority interest 266,16. - 530,44t -
$ 102,888,79 2 $ 121,415,00 9
2011 201C
Income Attributable to Income Attributable to
Shareholders of the Parent Shareholders of the Parent
Before After Before After

Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax Income Tax

EARNINGS PER SHAR (NT$, Note 25)

Basic earnings per shi 4.29 3.96 $ 4.8¢ $ 461
Diluted earnings per sh: 4.29 3.56 $ 4.8¢ $ 4.6¢
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements. (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 20

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIE:
Net incomi attributable to shareholders of the pa
Net income attributable to minority inters
Adjustments to reconcilnetincome to net cash provid¢ by operatin
activities:
Depreciation and amortizati
Amortization of premiur/discoun of financial asse
Impairment ofinancial asse
Gair on disposal of availae-for-sale financial assets, |
Gair on disposal of financial assets carried at cos
Equity in earnings of equity method investees
Cash dividends recved from equity method investt
Loss (cain) on disposal of property, plant and equiprrand othel
assets, net
Settlemer income from receiving equity securiti
Impairmentloss onidle asset
Deferred income te
Changes in operating assets and liabili
Decrease (increase)
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value tlylo profi
or loss
Receivables from related part
Notesand accountreceivabl
Allowance for doubtful receivabl
Allowance for sales returns and ott
Other receivables from related par
Other financial asse
Inventorie:
Prepaid expenses and other current ¢
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payab
Payables to related pari
Income tax payab
Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonus rtectir:
and supervisors
Accrued expenses and other current liabil
Accruec pension co:
Deferred credit

Net cash provided by operatingivities

2011 201(
$ 102,622,63  $ 120,884,56
266,16: 530,44
7993¢€,77¢ 64,505,81
20,13« 25,20¢
104,98: 112,75
(185,38) (192,87
(19,429 (116,28)
(916,64 (1,608,43)
2,848,14: 320,00:
2,951 (143,916)
(155,54 (4,434,36)
68,62¢ 31¢
487,18: (256,82
(407,998) 240,437
(269,64) 1,22¢
(1,549,39)) (10,117,11)
(12,829 44,64¢
(1,420,090 (1,927,85)
(9,319 (83,379
104,43: 794,78
1,759,641 (5,749,66)
(1,562,23) (677,574
(2,778,66) 1,055,18
495,24 834,62:
526,96. (3,497,13)
(4,020,898) 1,492,362
(2,172,237) (3,078,05)
79,88: 6,85(
(96,06%) (53,899
174750,39: 158,911,86
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 20

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIE!
Acquisitions of
Property, plant and equipm:

2011

$(184,191,03)

201(

$(141,008,32)

Available-for-sale financial asse¢ (34,741,87) (41,358,62)
Held-to-maturity financial asse - (4,150,54)
Investments accounted for using equity me - (6,242,35)
Financial assets carried at ¢ (158,30)) (1,753,71)
Proceeds from disposor redemptiorof:
Available-for-sae financial asse 58,618,49 31,520,28
Held-to-maturity financial asset 4 539,00 14,893,00
Financial assets carried at ¢ 207,42} 222,41t
Property, plant and equipm:and other asse 506,91: 133,09:
Increase i deferred charg: (1,110,400 (1,413,86)
Decrease ncreas) in refundable depos 3,951,70 (6,366,68)
Decrease (icreas) in other asse 1,75¢ (3,729
Net cash used in investing activif (152376,319) (155,529,04)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIE
Increase in shc-term loan 4,805,71 37,910,28
Proceeds from lor-term bank loar 2,250,001 -
Repayment clong-term bank loar (1,142,96) (283,85()
Procees from issuance of bon 18,000,00 -
Decrease in other lo-term payable (890,000) (1,126,38)
Decreas in guarantee depos (274,00) (185,119
Proceeds from donatio - 49,02:
Proceeds frol exercise of employestock option 155,95! 150,76(
Acquisition of treasury sto (71,599 -
Cash dividenc (77,730,23) (77,708,12)
Decreas in minority interest (114,41, (141,93)
Net castused it financing activitie (55,011,552 (41,335,33)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (32,€37,47¢) (37,952,51)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CAS
EQUIVALENTS 1,059,563 (1,055,066)
EFFECT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDTED ENTITIES (1,472,58) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OIPERIOD 147,886,95 171,276,34
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OFPERIOL $114,836,45 $ 132,268,75
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2.0
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2011 201c¢

SUPPLEMENTALDISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIN

Interest paid $ 418,37t $ 318,54.

Income tax paid 7,630,31 9,598,71
INVESTING ACTIVITIES AFFECTING BOTH CASH ANL

NON-CASH ITEMS

Acquisition of property, plant and equipm $ 162,427,53  $ 138,365,46

Decreae in payables to contractors and equipment sug 21,764,85 2,765,78.

Nonmonetary exchange tre-out price (1,359 (122,920

Cash pai $184,191,03  $ 141,008,32

Disposal of property, plant and equipment and ogkset: $ 508,26! $ 256,01:

Nonmonetary exchange tre-out price (1,359 (122,920

Cash receive $ 506,91: $ 133,09:

Acquisition of availabl-for-sale financial asse $ 34,679,09 $ 41,853,30

Decrease (icreas) in accued expenses and other current liabil 62,78¢ (494,68))

Cash pai $ 34,741,87 $ 41,358,62

Disposal of availab-for-sale financial asse $ 58,690,35 $ 31,520,28

Increase in other financial as¢ (71,859 -

Cash receive $ 58,618,49 $ 31,520,28
NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Current portion obonds payab $ 450000 $ -

Current portion olong-term bank loans $ 31.25( $ 870,66.

Current portion of other loi-term payablesunder accrued expen:

and other current liabilities) $ 7,275,104 $ 1,317,492

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements. (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2.0
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company LimiteBSMC), a Republic of China (R.O.C.)
corporation, was incorporated on February 21, 198/SMC is a dedicated foundry in the semiconductor
industry which engages mainly in the manufacturssiling, packaging, testing and computer-aidedgdes
of integrated circuits and other semiconductor deviand the manufacturing of masks. Beginning in
2010, TSMC also engages in the researching, dewglopgesigning, manufacturing and selling of solid
state lighting devices and related applicationsipets and systems, and renewable energy and eafficie
related technologies and products. In August 20BIMC transferred its solid state lighting and sola
businesses into its wholly-owned, newly incorpadagabsidiaries, TSMC Solid State Lighting Ltd. (TEM
SSL) and TSMC Solar Ltd. (TSMC Solar), respectively

On September 5, 1994, TSMC's shares were listeth@Taiwan Stock Exchange (TSE). On October 8,
1997, TSMC listed some of its shares of stock @aNew York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in the form of
American Depositary Shares (ADSS).

As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, TSMC and itsidigties had 35,382 and 33,889 employees,
respectively.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are preseintecbnformity with the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdss@and accounting principles generally acceptetién
R.O.C.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanyingatidated financial statements have been tramklate
into English from the original Chinese version @megal and used in the R.O.C. If there is any atnfli
between the English version and the original Clane=rsion or any difference in the interpretatiérihe
two versions, the Chinese-language consolidateshfial statements shall prevail.

Significant accounting policies are summarizedodiews:

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemerdside the accounts of all directly and indirectly
majority owned subsidiaries of TSMC, and the act®unf investees in which TSMC’s ownership

percentage is less than 50% but over which TSMGkamtrolling interest.  All significant intercomupy
balances and transactions are eliminated upon tdason.



The consolidated entities were as follows:

Percentage of Ownershi

September 30
Name of Investol Name of Investe 2011 201C Remark
TSMC TSMC North America 100% 100% -
TSMC Japan Limited (TSMC Japan) 100% 100% -
TSMC Partners, Ltd. (TSMC Partners) 100% 100% -
TSMC Korea Limited (TSMC Korea) 100% 100% -
TSMC Europe B.V. (TSMC Europe) 100% 100% -
TSMC Global Ltd. (TSMC Global) 100% 100% -
TSMC China Company Limited 100% 100% -
(TSMC China)
VentureTech Alliance Fund IIl, L.P. 52% 99% (Note 1)
(VTAF 111)
VentureTech Alliance Fund II, L.P. 98% 98% -
(VTAF 1)
Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P. 99.5% 99.5% -
(Emerging Alliance)
Global Unichip Corporation (GUC) (Note 2 35% -
Xintec Inc. (Xintec) 40% 41% TSMC obtained three out of fiy
director positions and has a
controlling interest in Xintec
TSMC SSL 100% - Establishe in Augus 2011
TSMC Solar 100% - Established in August 20
TSMC Partners TSMC Design Technology Canada 100% 100% -
Inc. (TSMC Canada)
TSMC Technology, Inc. (TSMC 100% 100% -
Technology)
TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC 100% 100% -
Development)
InveStar Semiconductor Development ~ 97% Q7% -
Fund, Inc. (ISDF)
InveStar Semiconductor Development ~ 97% Q7% -
Fund, Inc. (1) LDC. (ISDF II)
TSMC Development WaferTech, LLC (WaferTech) 10C% 100% -
VTAF I Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. 57% 59% -
(Mutual-Pak)
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fund) 100% 100% -
VTAF Ill, VTAF Il VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC 100% 100% -
and Emerging (VTA Holdings)
Alliance
GUC Global Unichip Corp.-NA (GUC-NA)  (Note 2 100% -
Global Unichip Japan Co., Ltd. (Note 2 100% -
(GUC-Japan)
Global Unichip Europe B.V. (Note 2 100% -
(GUC-Europe)
Global Unichip (BVI) Corp. (Note 2 100% -
(GUC-BVI)
GUC-BVI Global Unichip (Shanghai) Company, (Note 2 100% -
Limited (GUC-Shanghai)
TSMC SSL TSMC Lighting North America, Inc. 100% 100%  Established in September 2010
(TSMC Lighting NA) (Note 1)
TSMC Solar TSMC Solar North America, Inc. 100% 100%  Established in September 2010
(TSMC Solar NA) (Note 1)
TSMC Solar Europe B.V. (TSMC 100% 100%  Established in September 2010
Solar Europe) (Note 1)

(Continued)



Percentage of Ownershi

September 30
Name of Investol Name of Investe 2011 201C Remark
TSMC Solar VentureTech Alliance Fund IIl, L.P. 47% - (Note J)
(VTAF 1ll)
TSMC Solar Europe TSMC Solar Europe GmbH 10C% - Established in December 2010
(Note 1)
(Concluded)

Note 1: In August 2011, TSMC adjusted its investhstructure by transferring TSMC Lighting NA to
TSMC SSL and transferring TSMC Solar Europe, TSM@laSNA and part of VTAF 1l to
TSMC Solar.

Note 2: TSMC has no controlling interest over thearicial, operating and personnel hiring policy
decisions of GUC and its subsidiaries since July120 As a result, GUC and its subsidiaries are
no longer consolidated.

The following diagram presents information regagdihe relationship and ownership percentages betwee
TSMC and its consolidated investees as of SepteBhe2011:

TSMC

100% 100%  |100% 100% 100% |100% 100%  [s52% [o8% [o95%  [100%  [aow | 200%

e[ ([ | s | e s || | |[ommen [ froveso[ o |[ 50
62% 31% 7% |
[fo5% oo TR ] o7% m‘_‘ 100% 100% 100% 100% | 47%
TSme TSMmc TSme ISDF ISDF II Mutua- {1 Growtr VTA Jgsh’\t/ilr?g SI)Z':AEA Tssohlgr: VTAF I
Canada |[Technology| Developmer Pak Fund Holdings NA Europe

100% 100%
TSMC Solar
WaferTecl [Europe Gmb

TSMC has no controlling interest over the financtgderating and personnel hiring decisions of GW@ a
its subsidiaries since July 2011. As a result, GI@ its subsidiaries are no longer consolidatetaaa
accounted for using the equity method.

TSMC North America is engaged in selling and mankeof integrated circuits and semiconductor desice
TSMC Japan, TSMC Korea and TSMC Europe are engaggdly in marketing or customer service,
engineering and technical supporting activitiesSMIC Partners is engaged in investment in companies
involved in the design, manufacture, and othertedldusiness in the semiconductor industry. TSMC
Global and TSMC Development are engaged in invgséictivities. TSMC China is engaged in the
manufacturing and selling of integrated circuitsrquant to the orders from and product design
specifications provided by customers. Emergingafte, VTAF 1l, VTAF lll, VTA Holdings, ISDF,
ISDF 1, and Growth Fund are engaged in investingnew start-up technology companies. TSMC
Canada and TSMC Technology are engaged mainly gineering support activities. WaferTech is
engaged in the manufacturing, selling, testing @ndputer-aided designing of integrated circuits atter
semiconductor devices. Xintec is engaged in tlowigion of wafer packaging service. TSMC SSL is
engaged in researching, developing, designing, faatwring and selling solid state lighting devicex
related applications products and systems. TSMghting NA is engaged in selling and marketing of
solid state lighting related products. TSMC Sdkarengaged in researching, developing, designing,
manufacturing and selling renewable energy andggneaving related technologies and products. TSMC
Solar NA is engaged in selling and marketing oasotlated products. TSMC Solar Europe is engaged
investing activities of solar related business. MCSSolar Europe GmbH is engaged in the selling and
customer service of solar cell modules and relpteducts. Mutual-Pak is engaged in the manufagguri
and selling of electronic parts and researchingeldping and testing of RFID.

-10 -



To foster a stronger sense of corporate entreprsimguand facilitate business specializations ieorto
strengthen overall profitability and operationafi@éncy, TSMC transferred its solid state lightiagd
solar businesses into its wholly-owned, newly ipooated subsidiaries, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar, in
August 2011.

TSMC together with its subsidiaries are hereinatéerred to collectively as the “Company.”

Minority interests in the aforementioned subsidiariare presented as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity.

Foreign-currency Transactions and Translation of Foeign-currency Financial Statements

Foreign-currency transactions other than derivatioetracts are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at th
rates of exchange in effect when the transactiocmuro Exchange gains or losses derived from
foreign-currency transactions or monetary assets l@bilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in earnings.

At the balance sheet date, monetary assets anlitikabdenominated in foreign currencies are raedl at
prevailing exchange rates with the resulting gainwsses recognized in earnings.

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries @anslated into New Taiwan dollars at the follogyi
exchange rates: Assets and liabilities - spotsrateperiod-end; shareholders’ equity - historiedés;
income and expenses - average rates during thedperThe resulting translation adjustments arercsab
as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméniconformity with the aforementioned guidelirzesl
principles requires management to make reasonatdengtions and estimates of matters that are
inherently uncertain. The actual results may diffem management’s estimates.

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Current assets are assets held for trading purponsgsssets expected to be converted to cashsold
consumed within one year from the balance sheeat. dafurrent liabilities are obligations incurred fo
trading purposes and obligations expected to biedetvithin one year from the balance sheet date.
Assets and liabilities that are not classified @sent are noncurrent assets and liabilities, retspy.

Cash Equivalents

Repurchase agreements collateralized by governbmmis and corporate bonds acquired with maturities
of less than three months from the date of purclzeeclassified as cash equivalents. The carrying
amount approximates fair value due to their sterhtnature.

Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value ThroughProfit or Loss

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedgeounting are initially recognized at fair valuath
transaction costs expensed as incurred. The dedgaare remeasured at fair value subsequently wit
changes in fair value recognized in earnings. @ula way purchase or sale of financial assets is
accounted for using settlement date accounting.

Fair value is estimated using valuation technigiremrporating estimates and assumptions that are

consistent with prevailing market conditions. Witlea fair value is positive, the derivative is rgozed
as a financial asset; when the fair value is negathe derivative is recognized as a financidility.

-11 -



Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Investments designated as available-for-sale fiahmssets include debt securities and equity seesur
Available-for-sale financial assets are initiallgcognized at fair value plus transaction costs Hrat
directly attributable to the acquisition. Changefair value from subsequent remeasurement ar@rtegh

as a separate component of shareholders’ equithie cbrresponding accumulated gains or losses are
recognized in earnings when the financial asseferecognized from the balance sheet. A regular way
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouoteagsing settlement date accounting.

Fair value is determined as follows: Money markatds - net asset values at the end of the period;
publicly traded stocks - closing prices at the ehthe period; and other debt securities - averdded and
asked prices at the end of the period.

Cash dividends are recognized as investment inagrae resolution of shareholders of an investeeabrit
accounted for as a reduction to the original cbstwestment if such dividends are declared onetlimings

of the investee attributable to the period priorthe purchase of the investment. Stock dividends a
recorded as an increase in the number of shardsanel do not affect investment income. The cost pe
share is recalculated based on the new total nuoilstrares.

Any difference between the initial carrying amowifita debt security and the amount due at matusity i
amortized using the effective interest method, wWithamortization recognized in earnings.

If there is objective evidence which indicates thdinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recoghizdf, in

a subsequent period, the amount of the impairmesg Hecreases, for equity securities, the prewiousl
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the éxaérihe decrease and recorded as an adjustment to
shareholders’ equity; for debt securities, the amadfi the decrease is recognized in earnings, geavihat

the decrease is clearly attributable to an evemtiwbccurred after the impairment loss was recaghiz

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

Debt securities for which the Company has a pasifitention and ability to hold to maturity are
categorized as held-to-maturity financial assets @ carried at amortized cost. Those finan@aets
are initially recognized at fair value plus trartgat costs that are directly attributable to theuasition.
Gains or losses are recognized at the time of dgretion, impairment or amortization. A regularywa
purchase or sale of financial assets is accouoteagsing settlement date accounting.

If there is objective evidence which indicates thdinancial asset is impaired, a loss is recoghizdf, in

a subsequent period, the amount of the impairnusst decreases and the decrease is clearly atbiéuta

an event which occurred after the impairment loas wecognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed to the extent of the decreasee réhersal may not result in a carrying amount that
exceeds the amortized cost that would have beenmligied as if no impairment loss had been recognize

Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments

Hedge derivatives are mainly derivatives instruraehat are for cash flow hedge purposes and detetni
to be an effective hedge. The portion of the gailoss on the hedging instrument that is deterchtnebe
an effective hedge is recognized in shareholdaygite  The amount recognized in shareholders’ tyqui
is recognized in profit or loss in the same pewogheriod during which the hedged forecast transacir
an asset or liability arising from the hedged fastdransaction affects profit or loss. Howevkallior a
portion of a loss recognized in shareholders’ ggsinot expected to be recovered in the future attmount
that is not expected to be recovered is reclagsifie profit or loss.
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Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments for which the Company does not exesitpaificant influence and that do not have a qdiote
market price in an active market and whose faiuealannot be reliably measured, such as non-pyblicl
traded stocks and mutual funds, are carried at tnigjinal cost. The costs of non-publicly tradsdcks
and mutual funds are determined using the weigatedage method. If there is objective evidenceckvhi
indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a iIsgecognized. A subsequent reversal of suclhimment
loss is not allowed.

The accounting treatment for cash dividends andkstlividends arising from financial assets carréd
cost is the same as that for cash and stock dig&larising from available-for-sale financial assets

Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

An allowance for doubtful receivables is providesséd on a review of the collectability of receisbl
The Company assesses the collectability of reckigaby performing the account aging analysis and
examining current trends in the credit qualitytsfaustomers.

TSMC'’s provision was originally set at 1% of the@amt of outstanding receivables. On January 11201
the Company adopted the third revision of Stateroériinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 34,
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuren{&rAS No. 34).” One of the main revisions is
that the impairment of receivables originated g @ompany is subject to the provisions of SFAS ¥Mb.
Companies are required to evaluate for indicatibringairment of accounts receivable based on an
individual and collective basis at the end of egggorting period. When objective evidence indisdteat

the estimated future cash flow of accounts recédvalecreases as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the acetsureceivable, such accounts receivable are detorisel
impaired.

Because of the Company’s short average collectiviog, the amount of the impairment loss recogniged
the difference between the carrying amount of aotsoteceivable and estimated future cash flowsowith
considering the discounting effect. Changes in therying amount of the allowance account are
recognized as bad debt expense which is recorddtkinperating expenses - general and administrativ
When accounts receivable are considered uncollegtéie amount is written off against the allowance
account.

Inventories

Inventories are recorded at standard cost andtadjos approximate weighted-average cost on trenbal
sheet date.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orrealizable value. Inventory write-downs are madean
item-by-item basis, except where it may be appaterio group similar or related items. Net redliea
value is the estimated selling price of inventoliess all estimated costs of completion and necgssa
selling costs.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies wherein the Company esescsignificant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for usihg equity method. The Company’s share of the net
income or net loss of an investee is recognizateriequity in earnings/losses of equity methodestees,
net” account. The cost of an investment shallrmdyaed and the cost of investment in excess ofdine
value of identifiable net assets acquired, repitasgigoodwill, shall not be amortized. If the famlue of
identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the ¢asvestment, the excess shall be proportionatibdbeated

as reductions to fair values of non-current asg¢exsept for financial assets other than investments
accounted for using the equity method and defarmasime tax assets). When an indication of impamtme
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is identified, the carrying amount of the investiisireduced, with the related impairment loss gaczed
in earnings.

When the Company subscribes for additional invéstelgares at a percentage different from its exgsti
ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amadirthe investment in the investee differs from the
amount of the Company’s share of the investee'styequThe Company records such a difference as an
adjustment to long-term investments with the cqroesling amount charged or credited to capital sstpl

Gains or losses on sales from the Company to eqétyod investees or from equity method investees t
the Company are deferred in proportion to the Campjseownership percentages in the investees wnth s
gains or losses are realized through transactiathstinrd parties.

If an investee’s functional currency is a foreignrency, differences will result from the transbatiof the
investee’s financial statements into the reportingency of the Company. Such differences areggthr
or credited to cumulative translation adjustmeatseparate component of shareholders’ equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Assets Leased tOthers

Property, plant and equipment and assets leasethéos are stated at cost less accumulated defioecia
Properties covered by agreements qualifying astalafgases are carried at the lower of the leased
equipment’'s market value or the present value @fmimimum lease payments at the inception datbeof t
lease, with the corresponding amount recorded digations under capital leases. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or constian of property, plant and equipment are capiéali as
part of the cost of those assets. When an indicati impairment is identified, any excess of therging
amount of an asset over its recoverable amounegsgnized as a loss. If the recoverable amount
increases in a subsequent period, the amount meEyioecognized as impairment would be reversed and
recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted anroaptnot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, as if no impant loss had been recognized. Significant aafut
renewals and betterments incurred during the cectibn period are capitalized. Maintenance andirep
are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linghoe over the following estimated service livesand
improvements - 20 years; buildings - 10 to 20 yearachinery and equipment - 3 to 5 years; office
equipment - 3 to 15 years; and leased assetse&@8.y

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and egeipnand assets leased to others, the related wdst a
accumulated depreciation are deducted from theegponding accounts, with any gain or loss recoeted
non-operating gains or losses in the period of satiisposal.

When property, plant and equipment are determiodaktidle or useless, they are transferred toddets
at the lower of the net realizable value or cagyamount. Depreciation on the idle assets is dexli
continuously, and the idle assets are tested fpaiment on a periodical basis.

Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the considerat#d for acquisition over the fair value of iddiatble

net assets acquired. Goodwill is no longer amedtiand instead is tested for impairment annually, o
more frequently if events or changes in circumstansuggest that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. If an event occurs or circumstanbasge which indicate that the fair value of gootisil
more likely than not below its carrying amount,impairment loss is recognized. A subsequent revers
of such impairment loss is not allowed.
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Deferred charges consist of technology license, f&svare and system design costs and patenttardso
The amounts are amortized over the following pexiodTechnology license fees - the estimated lifthef
technology or the term of the technology transfartiact; software and system design costs - 2yteabs;
patent and others - the economic life or contractop. When an indication of impairment is ideietf,

any excess of the carrying amount of an assetitseecoverable amount is recognized as a lossthelf
recoverable amount increases in a subsequent pénmgreviously recognized impairment loss woutd b
reversed and recognized as a gain. However, tlustad amount may not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of amortimags if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Expenditures related to research activities andehelated to development activities that do nagtntiee
criteria for capitalization are charged to expenbken incurred.

Pension Costs

For employees who participate in defined contritiugpension plans, pension costs are recorded lmased
the actual contributions made to employees’ indigidpension accounts during their service periodor
employees who participate in defined benefit pengilans, pension costs are recorded based on iattuar
calculations.

Income Tax

The Company applies an inter-period allocationit®income tax whereby deferred income tax assads a
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects efporary differences, net operating loss carryfodeand
unused tax credits. Valuation allowances are pexvito the extent, if any, that it is more likehah not
that deferred income tax assets will not be redlizeA deferred tax asset or liability is classifieslcurrent
or noncurrent in accordance with the classificatbiits related asset or liability. However, itlaferred
tax asset or liability does not relate to an aesditbility in the financial statements, thenstdlassified as
either current or noncurrent based on the expdetegth of time before it is realized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machinenyd equipment, research and development
expenditures and personnel training expendituresemmognized using the flow-through method.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are &dido or deducted from the current period’s tax/jsion.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings (excludimgiegs from foreign consolidated subsidiaries) edta
of 10% is expensed in the year of shareholder ajpprehich is the year subsequent to the year the
earnings are generated.

Stock-based Compensation

Employee stock options that were granted or matlifiethe period from January 1, 2004 to December 31
2007 are accounted for by the interpretations thsoie the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. The Companlppéed the intrinsic value method and any
compensation cost determined using this methodgsgnized in earnings over the employee vesting
period. Employee stock option plans that were tghror modified after December 31, 2007 are
accounted for using fair value method in accordamith SFAS No. 39, “Accounting for Share-based
Payment.” The Company did not grant or modify amployee stock options since January 1, 2008.
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Treasury Stock

Treasury stock represents the outstanding shaagshiln Company buys back from market, which isestat
at cost and shown as a deduction in shareholdgustye When the Company retires treasury stock, th
treasury stock account is reduced and the comnuak sts well as the capital surplus - additionatipai
capital are reversed on a pro rata basis. Whehdbk value of the treasury stock exceeds the duireo
par value and additional paid-in capital, the ddéfece is charged to capital surplus - treasurykstoc
transactions and to retained earnings for any r@mmiamount. While disposing of the treasury stolok
treasury stock shall be reversed, and if the dapeslue is greater than the book value, the amaunt
excess of the book value shall be credited to madit paid-in capital - treasury stock.

Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Sales Returr@ad Others

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence afrangement exists, the rewards of ownership and
significant risk of the goods has been transfet@dhe buyer, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is reasonably assured. Provisions éstimated sales returns and other allowances are
recorded in the period the related revenue is mazed, based on historical experience, management’s
judgment, and any known factors that would sigatfity affect the allowance.

Sales prices are determined using fair value takibg account related sales discounts agreed tthéy
Company and its customers. Sales agreements ftygicavide that payment is due 30 days from ineoic
date for a majority of the customers and 30 to d¥sdhfter the end of the month in which sales otmur
some customers. Since the receivables from sedasodectible within one year and such transactiare
frequent, fair value of the receivables is equintite the nominal amount of the cash to be received

. ACCOUNTING CHANGES

On January 1, 2011, the Company prospectively adioglie newly revised SFAS No. 34, “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.” Th@émevisions include (1) finance lease receivables
are now covered by SFAS No. 34; (2) the scope @fftplicability of SFAS No. 34 to insurance consac

is amended; (3) loans and receivables originatethbyCompany are now covered by SFAS No. 34; (4)
additional guidelines on impairment testing of fiogl assets carried at amortized cost when theodbhs
financial difficulties and the terms of obligatiohave been modified; and (5) accounting treatmgna b
debtor for modifications in the terms of obligaon This accounting change did not have a sigmfica
effect on the Company’s consolidated financialestegnts as of and for the nine months ended Septembe
30, 2011.

On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the nestied SFAS No. 41, “Operating Segments.” The
statement requires identification and disclosureprating segments on the basis of how the Con'pany
chief operating decision maker regularly reviewiimation in order to allocate resources and assess
performance. This statement supersedes SFAS N6S89ment Reporting.” The Company conformed
to the disclosure requirements as of and for the nionths ended September 30, 2011. The informatio
for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 hes hecast to reflect the new segment reporting
requirement.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 3l
2011 201(
Cash and depos in banls $11038(,268 $ 127,654,51
Repurchase agreements collateralized by governipozrak 4,45€,191 4,457,59:
Corporat bond: - 156,65(

$ 11483645 $ 132,268,75
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5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

Trading financial asse

Forward exchange contra
Cross currency swap contre

Trading financial liabilitie

Forward exchange contra
Cross currency swap curacts

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

September 3l

2011 201(
$ 606,42 $ 9,21¢
- 11,14;
$ 606,42 $ 20,36(
$ 103,19 $ 74,74:
107451 -
$ 210,€1C $ 74,74

The Company entered into derivative contracts duttre nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

to manage exposures due to fluctuations of foreiphange rates.

The derivative contracts enterted i

by the Company did not meet the criteria for hedgeounting. Therefore, the Company did not apply
hedge accounting treatment for derivative contracts

Outstanding forward exchange contracts consisteldeofollowing:

September 30, 11

Sell NT$/BuyUS#$
Sell NT$/BuyJPY
Sell NT$/BuyEUR
Sell USYBuy JPY
Sell US$/BuyNT$
Sell US$/Buy EUI
Sell RMB/Buy US!
Sell EUR/Buy US
Sell JPY/Buy NT:

September 30, :1C

Sell EURBuy NT$
Sell US$/BuyNT$

Maturity Date

October 2011 tDecembr 2011
November 201
November 201

October 201

October 2011 tNovembe 2011

October 201

October 2011

October 011
October 2011 to November 2(

October 201
October 2010 to November 2(
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Contract Amount
(In Thousands)

NT$1050(,980/US$63,70C
NT$92,27/IPY240,00
NT$41,40EUR1,00(
US$7,025JPY54:,111
US$128,07(UNT$3,819,93:
US$10,21/EUR7,41.
RMB1,826,62/US$286,00
EUR3,53(/US%$4,95!
JPY64,30/NT$25,64(

EUR139,000/NT$5,851,5
US$42,500/NT$1,3365¢



Outstanding cross currency swap contracts consiftea following:

Range of Range of
Contract Amount Interest Rates  Interest Rates
Maturity Date (In Thousands) Paid Received

September 30, 21

October 201 US$117,00/NT$3,470,95 1.27%-4.40% 0.00%-0.00%

September 30, 20

October 201 US$90,000/NT$2,830,5 0.46% 0.00%-0.00%
For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 ah@, 2hanges in fair value related to derivative
financial instruments recognized in earnings waset gain of NT$600,902 thousand and NT$156,038

thousand, respectively.

. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
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September 3l
2011 201
Publicly trade stock: $ 3,254,03: $ 5,053,61i
Money market fnds 1,01¢ 57,57¢
Corporat bond: - 14,963,84
Agency bond - 8,651,64
Government bont - 1,630,51
3,255,05! 30,357,20
Current portio (3,255,051 (29,320,69)
$ - $ 1,03650
. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
September 3l
2011 201C
Corporate bonc $ 8,324,94 $ 14,113,39
Government bont 458,31( 469,95(
8,783,25 14,583,34
Current portio (1,566,46) (5,598,47)
$ 7216,78 $ 8,984,87



8. ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL RECEIVABLES, SALES RETU RNS AND OTHERS

Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivallese as follows:

Nine Months Endec September 3i

2011 201C
Balance, beginning of peri $ 504,02¢ $ 543,32!
Provision (reverse (3,116 44,64¢
Write-off (9,707 -
Effect of changes in consolidated enti (239%) -
Balance, end of peri $ 490,97: $ 587,97:

Movements of the allowance for sales returns ahdretwere as follows:

Nine Months Endec September 3i

2011 201(
Balance, beginning of peri $ 7,546,26. $ 8,724,48
Provisior 3,413,42 8,992,66:
Write-off (4,833,51) (10,920,52)
Balance, end of peri $ 6,126,17. $ 6,796,62

9. INVENTORIES
September 3l

2011 201(
Finished gooc $ 4,606,35 $ 3,418,32
Work in proces 17,566,11 19,449,68
Raw material 1,675,82 1,864,69:
Supplies ad spare par 1,843,95. 1,930,711

$ 25,692,23 $ 26,663,41

Write-down of inventories to net realizable valaghe amount of NT$388,175 thousand and NT$664,631
thousand, respectively, were included in the cbstates for the nine months ended September 30, 201
and 2010. Inventory losses related to earthquakba amount of NT$190,992 thousand were classified
under non-operating expenses and losses for teenmamths ended September 30, 2010.
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10. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

September 3l
2011 201(
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
Common stoc
Vanguard International Semiconduc
Corporation (VIS) $ 8,918,553 38 $ 9,424,817 38
Systems on Silicon Manufacturing Compe
Pte Ltd. (SSMC) 6,109,136 39 6,890,171 39
Motech Industries In (Motech 5,899173 20 6,533,43, 2C
VisEra Holding Company (VisEra Holdir 2,720564 49 2,421,56! 49
GUC 1,117,07 35 - -
Mcube Inc. (Mcube - 82 - 7C
Aiconn Technology Corporation (Aicor - - 21,37( 43
Preferred stoc
Mcube - 5 6,70¢ 1C
$ 24,864,502 $ 25,298,06

The Company has no controlling interest over tharftial, operating and personnel hiring policy diecis
of GUC and its subsidiaries since July 2011. Hawethe Company has significant influence over them
and therefore, they are no longer consolidatedaa@éccounted for using the equity method.

The Company originally owned 43% of Aiconn, whichsumerged with Accton Wireless Broadband Corp.
(Accton) in March 2011. As a result of the merghe Company’s equity investment in Aiconn was
exchanged for equity of Accton and the Company riitl exercise significant influence over Accton.
Therefore, the aforementioned investment was rsifiled to financial assets carried at cost.

In February 2010, the Company subscribed to 75Bbsisand shares of Motech through a private
placement for NT$6,228,661 thousand; after the gigi®on, the Company’s percentage of ownership in
Motech was 20%. Transfer of the aforementionedrmomshares within three years is prohibited unless
permitted by other related regulations.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 ah@, Z@uity in earnings/losses of equity method
investees was a net gain of NT$916,644 thousandNar#l,608,430 thousand, respectively. Related
equity in earnings/losses of equity method investeere determined based on the reviewed financial
statements, except for Aiconn and Mcube. The Compzelieves that, had the aforementioned equity
method investees’ financial statements been reweway adjustments arising would have no material
effect on the Company'’s consolidated financialestagnts.

The quoted market price of publicly traded stockanrestricted investments accounted for usingethaty

method of VIS and GUC was NT$12,574,108 thousandofasSeptember 30, 2011 and of VIS
NT$8,606,662 thousand as of September 30, 2010.
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11.

Movements of the difference between the cost oéstments and the Company’s share in investees’ net
assets allocated to depreciable assets were aw$oll

Nine Months Endec September 3i

2011 201c
Balance, beginningf perioc $ 2,491,89 $ 1,391,50
Additions - 2,055,66!
Deduction (629,05) (707,63)
Balance, end cperioc 1,862,84! $ 2,739,52

Movements of the difference allocated to goodwirevas follows:

Nine Months Ended September 3

2011 201(
Balance, beginning ¢perioc $ 1,415,56 $ 1,061,88
Additions - 353,68
Balance, end cperioc $ 1415,56! $ 1,415,56
HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

September 3l

2011 201(
Hedqing derivative financial liabiliti¢
Interest rate swap contr. $ 35€ $ 1,06¢

The Company'’s long-term bank loans bear floatimgriest rates; therefore, changes in the marketeisit
rate may cause future cash flows to be volatileccohdingly, the Company entered into an interet ra
swap contract in order to hedge cash flow risk edusy floating interest rates. The outstandingrizdt
rate swap contract consisted of the following:

Contract Amount Rangeaf Interest Rangeof Interest
(In Thousands) Maturity Date Rates Paid Rates Received

Septembe 30, 201

NT$92,00( August 31, 201 1.38% 0.63%-0.85%

Septembe 30, 201(

NT$140,00 August 31, 201 1.38% 0.56%

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 at@, 20e adjustment for the current period to
shareholders’ equity amounted to net losses of R&$housand and NT$1,065 thousand, respectivety; an
the amount removed from shareholders’ equity andgeized as a loss from the above interest rat@ swa
contract amounted to NT$564 thousand and nil, ctsfdy.

-21 -



12. FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

September 3l
2011 201C
Non-publicly traded stocl $ 4,080,78 $ 4,305,55!
Mutual funds 31202C 159,25:
$ 4,392,866 $ 4,464,80

In June 2010, the Company invested in Stion Cotora(Stion, a United States corporation) for
US$50,000 thousand and obtained Stion’s prefertedksof 7,347 thousand shares with 23.4% of
ownership. Stion is engaged in the manufacturinggh-efficiency thin-film solar photovoltaic mobs.
Due to certain restrictions contained in the invesit agreements, the Company does not have they abil
to exert significant influence over Stion’s opengtand financial policies. Therefore, the invesitneas
classified under financial assets carried at cost.

The common stock of Capella Microsystems (Taiwam), and Integrated Memory Logic Limited was
listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market amilvin Stock Exchange in June 2010 and May 2010,
respectively. Thus, the Company reclassified tfmeamentioned investments from financial assets
carried at cost to available-for-sale financiakesss

For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 a@ g Company recognized impairment on financial
assets carried at cost of NT$104,981 thousand &i$d N2,759 thousand, respectively.

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011

Balance, Effect of Changes Effect of
Beginning of in Consolidated Exchange Rate Balance,
Period Additions Disposals Reclassification Entities Changes End of Period
Cost
Land and land improvements $ 891,197 $ 652,011 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,837 $ 1,548,045
Buildings 145,966,024 23,937,530 (45,073) (388) (242,718) 707,601 170,322,976
Machinery and equipment 913,155,252 124,397,892 (1,808,103) (61,121) (375,702) 1,466,748 1,036,774,966
Office equipment 14,856,582 2,256,434 (349,529) (72,041) (236,153) 42,873 16,498,166
Leased asset 701,552 - - - - 30,192 731,744
1,075,570,607 $ 151,243,867 $  (2,202,705) $ (133,550) $ (854,573) $ 2,252,251 1,225,875,897
Accumulated depreciation
Land and land improvements 328,792 $ 19,902 $ - $ - $ - $ 3,015 351,709
Buildings 90,472,703 7,611,721 (18,913) (55) (32,791) 279,706 98,312,371
Machinery and equipment 671,268,636 69,471,928 (1,782,567) (39,313) (293,605) 901,939 739,527,018
Office equipment 10,957,676 1,042,931 (345,382) (13,563) (148,862) 34,342 11,527,142
Leased asset 250,350 25,297 - - - 12,480 288,127
773,278,157 $ 78171779 $ (2,146,862) $ (52,931) $  (475258) $ 1,231,482 850,006,367
Advance payments and construction in
progress 86,151,573 $ 11,183,672 $ (455,373) $ 1,610 $ - $ 202,210 97,083,692
$ 388,444,023 $ 472,953,222
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
Balance, Effect of
Beginning of Exchange Rate Balance,
Period Additions Disposals Reclassification Changes End of Period
Cost
Land and land improvements $ 934,090 $ - $ - $ 324 $ (18,201) $ 916,213
Buildings 142,294,558 3,353,817 (135,497) 4,414 (167,743) 145,349,549
Machinery and equipment 775,653,489 124,966,538 (1,226,898) 215,989 (933,235) 898,675,883
Office equipment 13,667,747 1,446,535 (673,085) 1,776 (28,051) 14,414,922
Leased asset 714,424 - - - (603) 713,821
933,264,308 $ 129,766,890 $ (2,035480) $ 222,503 $  (1,147,833) 1,060,070,388
Accumulated depreciation
Land and land improvements 317,580 $ 21,815 - $ $ (7,332) 332,063
Buildings 81,821,718 6,880,336 (128,466) - (106,283) 88,467,305
Machinery and equipment 600,795,474 55,052,858 (1,188,485) 132,823 (1,048,986) 653,743,684
Office equipment 10,589,349 860,766 (672,909) (440) (24,594) 10,752,172
Leased asset 219,765 26,483 - - (287) 245,961
693,743,886 $ 62,842,258 $ (1,989.860) $ 132,383 $  (1,187.482) 753,541,185
Advance payments and
construction in progress 34,154,365 $ 8,626,111 $ (26,890) $ (98,914) $ (4,667) 42,650,005
$ 273,674,787 $ 349,179,208
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The Company entered into agreements to lease hgéidhat qualify as capital leases. The term ef th
leases are from December 2003 to December 2013e fullre minimum lease payments as of September
30, 2011 were NT$806,715 thousand.

During the nine months ended September 30, 20€1Ctimpany capitalized the borrowing costs directly

attributable to the acquisition or construction mbperty, plant and equipment. Information about
capitalized interest was as follows:

Nine Months
Ended
September 30,
2011
Cepitalizedinteres $ 6,00¢
Capitalization rate 1.07%-1.2%
14. DEFERRED CHARGES, NET
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011
Effect of
Balance, Changes in Effect of
Beginning of Consolidated  Exchange Rate Balance,
Period Additions Amortization Reclassification Entities Changes End of Period
Technology license fees $ 2,455,348 $ 10,308 $ (543,192) $ - $ (66,186) $ (587) $ 1,855,691
Software and system design
costs 2,333,271 930,821 (868,812) (1,610) (177,916) 488 2,216,242
Patent and others 1,238,466 169,273 (349,845) - - 4,162 1,062,056
$ 6027085  $ 1110402  $(1.761.849) $  (1.610) $ (244,102) $ 4,063  $ 5133989
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
Balance,
Beginning of Effect of Exchange Balance,
Period Additions Amortization Reclassification Rate Changes End of Period
Technology license fees $ 3,230,624 $ 2,000 $ (597,513) $ - $ (19) $ 2,635,092
Software and system design
costs 1,834,528 1,176,073 (769,009) 5,192 45 2,246,829
Patent and others 1,393,402 235,796 (292,734) - (64) 1,336,400
$ 6,458,554 $ 1,413,869 $ (1.659,256) $ 5,192 $ (38) $ 6,218,321

15. SHORT-TERM LOANS

September 3l

2011 2010
Unsecured loal
US$1,058,200 thousand and EUR88,725 thousdue by
November 2011, and annual interest at 0.40%-1.502011;
US$1,210,000 thousand, due by February 2011, amebhn
interest at 0.39%-1.84% in 2010. $ 36,019,654 $ 37,910,282
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16.

17.

BONDS PAYABLE

September 3l
2011 201C
Domestic unsecured bor
Issued in Septeber 2011 and repayable in September 2
1.40% interest payable annually $ 10,500,000 $ -
Issued in September 2011 and repayable in Septe2Oiti8t
1.63% interest payable annually 7,500,000 -
Issued in January 2002 and repayable in .y 2C12, 3.0(%
interest payable annually 4,500,000 4,500,000
22,500,00 4,500,00!
Current portiol (4,500,00) -
$ 18,000,00 4,500,00!
LONG-TERM BANK LOANS
September 3l
2011 201
Bank loans for wrking capital
Repayable in full in one lump sum payment in Junts2@nnua
interest at 1.00%-1.07% $ 650,000 $ -
Repayable in full in one lump sum payment in Marfi2, annue
interest at 1.02%-1.16% 500,000 -
Repayable from July012 in 16 quarterly installments, ann
interest at 1.11%-1.19% 300,000 -
Repayable from September 2012 in 16 quarterly lingats,
annual interest at 1.13%-1.20% 200,000 -

Secured loas:
US$20,000 thousar repayable in full in ne lump sum paymel
in November 2010, annual interest at 0.68%-0.8320i0 - 628,563
Repayable fronAugus 2009 in 17 quarterly installments, ann
interest at 0.66%-1.18% in 2010, repayable inifubne lump

sum payment in June 2011 - 605,052
1,650,00t 1,233,61:
Curren portior (31,25() (870,66

$ 1,618,75 $ 362,95

Pursuant to the loan agreements, financial rat@eutated based on semi-annual and annual financial
statements of Xintec must comply with predetermifieg@incial covenants.

As of September 30, 2011, future principal repayiéor the long-term bank loans were as follows:

Year of Repayment Amount
201z $ 62,50(
2013 625,00(
201¢ 125,00(
201t 125,00(
2016 712,50(
$ 1,650,00
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18.

19.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

September 3l
2011 201(
Payables for acquisition of prope, plant and equipment (Nc 30¢) $ 6,458,72 $ 7,235,59
Payables for royaltit 816,39 909,77¢
7,275,10. 8,145,37

Current portionclassifiedunder accrued expenses and other ct

liabilities) (7,275,104) (1,317,492)
$ . $.6,827,87

The payables for royalties were primarily attribaléato several license arrangements that the Coynpan
entered into for certain semiconductor-relatedqtate

As of September 30, 2011, future payments for dtreg-term payables were as follows:

Year of Paymen Amount
2011 (4" quarter $ 3,535,35
2012 3,739,75

$ 7,275,10
PENSION PLANS

The pension mechanism under the Labor PensionthAet“Act”) is deemed a defined contribution plan.

Pursuant to the Act, TSMC, GUC, Xintec, Mutual-Pa8EMC SSL and TSMC Solar have made monthly
contributions equal to 6% of each employee’'s magnthhlary to employees’ pension accounts.
Furthermore, TSMC North America, TSMC China, TSM@rd&pe, TSMC Canada, TSMC Solar NA and

TSMC Solar Europe GmbH are required by local regpda to make monthly contributions at certain

percentages of the basic salary of their employe®ursuant to the aforementioned Act and local
regulations, the Company recognized pension cd3$t§ $963,043 thousand and NT$774,327 thousand for
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and B&kctively.

TSMC, GUC, Xintec, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar haverdaf benefit plans under the Labor Standards
Law that provide benefits based on an employeeigtle of service and average monthly salary for the
six-month period prior to retirement. The aforeti@red companies contribute an amount equal to 2% o
salaries paid each month to their respective parfsinds (the Funds), which are administered bylLtisor
Pension Fund Supervisory Committee (the Commitied)deposited in the Committee’s name in the Bank
of Taiwan. The Company recognized pension costdT#246,249 thousand and NT$193,180 thousand
for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 ah@l, 28spectively.
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20.

Movements of the Funds and accrued pension

cogdruhe defined benefit plans were summarized as

follows:
Nine Months Endec September 3i
2011 201C
The Fund
Balance, beginning of peri $ 2,888,85 $ 2,644,98
Contributiors 163,58¢ 162,59:
Interes 27,24 41,57¢
Paymers (7,339 (11,050
Effect of changes in consolidated enti (23,959 -
Balance, end of peri $ 3,048,39 $ 2,837,900
Accrued pension cc
Balance, beginning of peri $ 3,812,35 $ 3,797,03.
Accruals 79,88: 6,85(
Effect of changes in consolidated enti (2,759 -
Balance, end of peri $ 3,889,47 $ 3,803,88

INCOME TAX

a. A reconciliation of income tax expense basetirmmome before income tax” at the statutory rated a

income tax currently payable was as follows:

Nine Months Endec September 3i
2011 2010

Income tax expense based on “income before incariel the

statutory rates
Tax effect of the fdowing:
Tax-exempt incom

$ 20,083,496 $ 22,833,745

(11,148,95) (12,828,40)

Temporary and permanent differer (1,066,17) (806,84)
Additional income tax under the Alternative MinimUrax Act 116,71¢ -
Additional tax at10% on unappropriateearning 6,293,38 138,24
Net operating loss carryforwards u (397,79) (390,410
Investment tax credits us (6,317,60) (3,727,98)

Income tax currently payal

$ 7,563,07 $ 5,218,34.

b. Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Nine Months Endec September 3i

2011 2010

Income tax currently payal $ 7,563,07. $ 5,218,34.
Income tax adjustments on prior ye: 470,22! 978,29!
Other income tax adjustme 114,26: (27442
Net change in deferred income tax as

Investment tax credi 2,835,17: (6,952,51)

Net operating loss carryforwal 393,58: 402,21«

Temporary differenct 144,92: 33,00¢

Valuation allowance (2,808,00) 6,321,18:-

Effect of changes in consolidated enti (74,969 -

Income taxexpens

$ 8,638,26. $ 5,973,08
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c. Net deferred income tax assets consisted dbtlmaving:

September 3l

2011 2010
Curren deferred income t: asset

Investment tax credi $ 31,02¢ $ 1,197,70
Temporary differenci

Allowance for sales returns and ott 530,74! 592,95¢

Unrealized gain/loss on financial instrume 288,76 65,58¢

Other: 382,12: 480,45
Valuation allowanc (139,369 (135,549

$ 1,093,29 $ 2,201,16

Noncurren deferred income tax ass

Investment tax credi $ 19,760,37 $ 21,243,53
Net operating loss carryforwal 2,338,08 2,973,98.
Temporary differenci
Depreciatiol 2,064,54 2,148,20!
Other: 606,17. 409,73:
Valuation allowanc (13,487,73) (16,361,18)

$ 11,281,44 $ 10,414,27

Effective in May 2010, the Article 5 of the Incoriax Law of the Republic of China was amended, in
which the income tax rate of profit-seeking entisgs would be reduced from 20% to 17%. The last
amended income tax rate of 17% is retroactivehliagmn January 1, 2010. TSMC and its domestic
subsidiaries which are subject to the Income Taw lod the Republic of China recalculated their
deferred tax assets in accordance with the new @edeArticle and adjusted the resulting differense a
an income tax expense in 2010.

Under Article 10 of the Statute for Industrial Ivadion (Sll) legislated and effective in May 200,
profit-seeking enterprise may deduct up to 15%ofesearch and development expenditures from its
income tax payable for the period in which thespeexitures are incurred, but this deduction should
not exceed 30% of the income tax payable for tleaibd. This incentive is retroactive to January 1,
2010 and effective until December 31, 2019.

As of September 30, 2011, the net operating loss/foavards generated by WaferTech, TSMC
Development and Mutual-Pak would expire on varidates through 2023.

d. Integrated income tax information:

The balance of the imputation credit account of TSMkls of September 30, 2011 and 2010 was
NT$4,016,138 thousand and NT$1,669,533 thousasgeotively.

The estimated and actual creditable ratios foridigion of TSMC'’s earnings of 2010 and 2009 were
4.95% and 9.85%, respectively.

The imputation credit allocated to shareholderBased on its balance as of the date of the dividend
distribution. The estimated creditable ratio magrmge when the actual distribution of the imputatio
credit is made.

e. All of TSMC's earnings generated prior to DecemBl, 1997 have been appropriated.
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f. As of September 30, 2011, investment tax credit§ SMC, Xintec, Mutual-Pak and TSMC Solar
consisted of the following:

Total Remaining
Creditable Creditable Expiry
Law/Statute Item Amount Amount Year

Statute for Upgrading Purchase of machinery and $ 63,85: $ 42,37¢ 2011

Industries equipment 3,209,21. 604,25: 201z
6,524,65. 6,524,65. 201z

7,037,24. 7,037,24. 201¢

505,94: 505,94: 201t

$17,340,90 $14,714,46

Statute for Upgrading Research and development $ 9,067 % - 2011
Industries expenditures 1,804,25 31,43¢ 201z
5,028,28 5,028,28. 201z

$ 6,841600 $ 5,059,71
Statute for Upgrading Personnel training expenditures $ 48¢ $ - 2011
Industries 17,40° 16 201z
17,20: 17,20 201z

$ 35,09¢ ¢ 17,21¢

Statute for Industrial Research and development $ 1,864,160 ¢ - 2011
Innovation expenditures

g. The profits generated from the following progeot TSMC and Xintec are exempt from income tax for
a five-year period:

Tax-exemption Perioc

Constructioranc expansio of 2003 by TSM( 2007 to 201
Constructioranc expansio of 2004 by TSM( 2008 to 201
Constructioranc expansio of 2005 by TSM( 2010 to 201
Constructioranc expansio of 2006 by TSM( 2011 to 201
Constructioranc expansio of 2003 by Xintec 2007 to 201
Constructioranc expansio of 2002, 2003 and 2006 Xintec 201(to 201«

h. The tax authorities have examined income tamrmet of TSMC through 2008. All investment tax
credit adjustments assessed by the tax authadniies been recognized accordingly.
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21. LABOR COST, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

22.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 20:

Classified a
Classified a Operating
Cost of Sale Expense Total
Labor cos
Salaryand bonus $ 20,258,71 $ 15,450,04 $ 35,708,76
Labor and health insurar 1,000,03 686,43 1,686,07:
Pension 732,69: 476,59 1,209,29:
Meal 538,04 217,37! 755,42(
Welfare 546,90: 201,64 748,54:
Othes 67,18: 202,42 269,61,
$ 23,143,56 $ 17,234,13 $ 40,377,70
Depreciatiol $ 72,967,19 $ 5,196,75. $ 78,163,94
Amortizatior $ 1,089,811 $ 672,03 $ 1,761,84

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2(0

Classified a
Classified a Operating
Cost of Sale Expense Total
Labor cos
Salaryand bonus $ 20,151,19 $ 16,310,02 $ 36,461,21
Labor and health insurar 728,80: 555,29t 1,284,101
Pension 580,20t 387,29 967,50
Meal 436,48 177,43! 613,92
Welfare 517,53¢ 198,94t 716,48(
Othes 92,86 210,06. 302,92«
$ 22,507,08 $ 17,839,06 $ 40,346,15
Depreciatiol $ 58,880,73 $ 3,949,32 $ 62,830,05
Amortizatior $ 982,87 $ 676,37¢ 1,659,25

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

As of September 30, 2011, 1,092,313 thousand ADFSMIC were traded on the NYSE. The number of
common shares represented by the ADSs was 5,461fe6isand (one ADS represents five common
shares).

Capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficder the Company Law. However, the capital lssrp
generated from donations and the excess of tharissyprice over the par value of capital stockligiag
the stock issued for new capital, mergers, cortlerbonds and the surplus from treasury stock actens)
may be appropriated as stock dividends, which ianéeld to a certain percentage of TSMC's paid-in
capital. In addition, the capital surplus fromdeterm investments may not be used for any purpose.
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Capital surplus consisted of the following:

September 3l
2011 201C
Additional paic-in capita $ 23,734,15 $ 23,562,19
From merge 22,805,39 22,805,39
From convertible bonu 8,893,19 8,893,199
From lon¢-term investmen 256,941 373,24«
Donation: 55 55

$ 55,689,73 $ 55,634,07

TSMC's Atrticles of Incorporation provide that, whahocating the net profits for each fiscal yeaBMC
shall first offset its losses in previous years Hreh set aside the following items accordingly:

a. Legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits tefer, until the accumulated legal capital resexgaals
TSMC's paid-in capital;

b. Special capital reserve in accordance with eglelaws or regulations or as requested by theoaitits
in charge;

c. Bonus to directors and profit sharing to empésyef TSMC of not more than 0.3% and not less than
1% of the remainder, respectively. Directors wisp aerve as executive officers of TSMC are not
entitled to receive the bonus to directors. TSM&ynssue profit sharing to employees in stock of an
affiliated company meeting the conditions set bg oard of Directors or, by the person duly
authorized by the Board of Directors;

d. Any balance left over shall be allocated acaaydo the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

TSMC's Articles of Incorporation also provide thaofits of TSMC may be distributed by way of cash
dividend and/or stock dividend. However, distribotof profits shall be made preferably by way a$le
dividend. Distribution of profits may also be mdaeway of stock dividend; provided that the reto
stock dividend shall not exceed 50% of the totsirdiution.

Any appropriations of the profits are subject targolders’ approval in the following year.

TSMC accrued profit sharing to employees basedestain percentage of net income during the period,
which amounted to NT$6,887,967 thousand and NT®34¥® thousand for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Bontsedirectors were accrued based on estimated
amount of payment. If the actual amounts subsealyjuessolved by the shareholders differ from the
estimated amounts, the differences are recorddtienyear of shareholders’ resolution as a change in
accounting estimate. If profit sharing is resoltede distributed to employees in stock, the nunafe
shares is determined by dividing the amount of ipsifaring by the closing price (after considerthg
effect of dividends) of the shares on the day pigethe shareholders’ meeting.

TSMC no longer has supervisors since January 17.200he required duties of supervisors are being
fulfilled by the Audit Committee.

The appropriation for legal capital reserve shallnade until the reserve equals TSMC's paid-intahpi
The reserve may be used to offset a deficit, odib&ibuted as dividends and bonuses for the poiitio
excess of 50% of the paid-in capital if TSMC hasumappropriated earnings and the reserve balarse ha
exceeded 50% of TSMC's paid-in capital. The Conyplasaw also prescribes that, when the reserve has
reached 50% of TSMC's paid-in capital, up to 50%hef reserve may be transferred to capital.
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23.

A special capital reserve equivalent to the nettdelance of the other components of shareholassity

(for example, cumulative translation adjustmentsl amrealized loss on financial instruments, but
excluding treasury stock) shall be made from unaypated earnings pursuant to existing regulations
promulgated by the Securities and Futures Bure&B)S Any special reserve appropriated may be
reversed to the extent that the net debit balaewerses.

The appropriations of earnings for 2010 and 2009 been approved in TSMC's shareholders’ meetings
held on June 9, 2011 and June 15, 2010, respactiv@he appropriations and dividends per share asre
follows:

Dividends Per Shart

Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)
For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2C1C Year 2009 Year 2C1C Year 20(9
Legal capital resen $ 16,160,50 $ 8,921,78
Special capital reser 5,120,82 1,313,04
Cash dividends to shareholc 77,730,23 77,708,12 $3.0C $3.0C

$ 99,011,56 $ 87,942,95

TSMC'’s profit sharing to employees to be paid irsttaand bonus to directors in the amounts of
NT$10,908,338 thousand and NT$51,131 thousanddd 2respectively, and profit sharing to employees
to be paid in cash and bonus to directors in theusts of NT$6,691,338 thousand and NT$67,692
thousand for 2009, respectively, had been approvéie shareholders’ meeting held on June 9, 20l a
June 15, 2010, respectively. The resolved amoahtthe profit sharing to employees and bonus to
directors were consistent with the resolutions efeting of the Board of Directors held on Februasy 1
2011 and February 9, 2010 and same amount had dieseged against earnings of 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

The information about the appropriations of TSM@rsfit sharing to employees and bonus to direa®rs
available at the Market Observation Post Systensiteb

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that beceffextive on January 1, 1998, R.O.C. resident
shareholders are allowed a tax credit for theipprtonate share of the income tax paid by TSMC on
earnings generated since January 1, 1998.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

TSMC’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consistinghef TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plan and TSMC
2002 Plan, were approved by the SFB on January085,20ctober 29, 2003 and June 25, 2002,
respectively. The maximum number of options autear to be granted under the TSMC 2004 Plan,
TSMC 2003 Plan and TSMC 2002 Plan was 11,000 thmaljse?0,000 thousand and 100,000 thousand,
respectively, with each option eligible to subserfbr one common share of TSMC when exercised. The
options may be granted to qualified employees dfiTSr any of its domestic or foreign subsidiariies,
which TSMC's shareholding with voting rights, ditlgcor indirectly, is more than fifty percent (50%)
The options of all the plans are valid for ten geand exercisable at certain percentages subsetquitnat
second anniversary of the grant date. Under ttmstef the plans, the options are granted at arciesee
price equal to the closing price of TSMC’s commabarss listed on the TSE on the grant date.

Options of the plans that had never been grantéddibeen granted but subsequently canceled hagexp
as of September 30, 2011.
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Information about TSMC's outstanding options foe thine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010
was as follows:

Weightec-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price
(In Thousands) (NT$)
Nine months ended Septembe, 2C11
Balance, begining of perio 21,43: $31.¢
Options exercise (5,070 30.¢
Balance, end of peri 16,36¢ 31.¢
Nine months ended Septembe, 2C10
Balance, beginning of peri 28,81( $32.¢
Options exercise (4,63¢) 32.t
Balance, end of peri 24.17: 32.5

The number of outstanding options and exerciseepritave been adjusted to reflect the distributibn o
earnings by TSMC in accordance with the plans.

As of September 30, 2011, information about TSMdLitstanding options was as follows:

Options Outstanding
Weighted-average

Remaining Weightec-average
Range of Exercise Number of Options Contractual Life Exercise Price
Price (NT$) (In Thousands (Years) (NT$)
$ 20.9-$29.3 12,36: 1.t $27.%
38.0- 50.1 4,00t 3.2 45.7
16,36¢ 1.¢ 31.¢

As of September 30, 2011, all of the above outstanaptions were exercisable.

Xintec’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consistinglef Xintec 2007 Plan and Xintec 2006 Plan, were

approved by the SFB on June 26, 2007 and July (&,2@spectively. The maximum number of options

authorized to be granted under the Xintec 2007 RrahXintec 2006 Plan was 6,000 thousand each, with
each option eligible to subscribe for one commoaresiof Xintec when exercised. The options may be
granted to qualified employees of Xintec or anytefsubsidiaries. The options of all the plans\aid

for ten years and exercisable at certain percestagiesequent to the second anniversary of the dadet
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Information about Xintec’s outstanding options tbe nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

was as follows:

Nine months ended Septembe, 2C11

Balance, beginning of peri
Optionsexercise

Options cancele

Balance, end of peri

Nine months ended Septembe, 2C10

Balance, beginning of peri
Optionsexercise
Options cancele

Balance, end of peri

Weightec-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price
(In Thousands (NT$)
1,83 $15.1
(965) 14.¢
(27) 17.1
84C 16.C
3,96( $14.7
(1,440 14.z
(266) 17.2
2,25¢ 14.¢

The exercise prices have been adjusted to reftectlistribution of earnings by Xintec in accordamgth

the plans.

As of September 30, 2011, information about Xirgemitstanding and exercisable options was as fellow

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weightec-

average
Range o Number of Remaining
Exercise Options (In Contractual

Price (NT$) Thousands Life (Years)

$10.¢-$12.7 24( 5.C
14.¢- 18.¢ 60C 6.C
84C 5.7

Weightec-

average

Exercise
Price
(NTS)

$11.C
16.¢

15.2

Weightec-

average

Number of Exercise
Options (In Price
Thousands (NT$)
23€ $11.C
_39C 15.¢
62€ 14.C

No compensation cost was recognized under thengntrivalue method for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010. Had the Companytheddir value based method to evaluate the options
using the Black-Scholes model, the assumptionfietvarious grant dates and pro forma results of the
Company for the nine months ended September 3@, 20d 2010 would have been as follows:

Assumptions
TSMC Expected dividend yie
Expected volatilit
Risk free interest ra
Expected lifi

Xintec Expected dividend yie
Expected volatilit
Risk free interest ra
Expected lifi
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Nine Months Ended September 2

2011 201
Net income attributable to shareholders of the sz
As reporte $ 102,622,63  $ 120,884,56
Pro form: 102,618,78 120,871,97
Earnings per share (EP- after income tax (NT$
Basic EPS as report $3.9¢ $4.67
Pro forma basic EF 3.9¢ 4.67
Diluted EPS as report 3.9¢ 4.6¢€
Pro forma diluted EF 3.9¢ 4.6€

. TREASURY STOCK
(Shares in Thousands)

Number of
Shares, Number of
Beginning of Shares, End of
Purpose of Treasury Stock Period Addition Period
Nine months ended September 30, 2
Shareholders executed the appraisal - 1,00(¢ 1,00(

In August 2011, at the option of the shareholdér§MC, certain shareholders requested TSMC to buy
back their shares pursuant to the Company Law. ofASeptember 30, 2011, the book value and market
value of treasury stock were NT$71,598 thousand\ar$69,998 thousand, respectively.

Under the Securities and Exchange Act, TSMC shaither pledge treasury stock nor exercise
shareholders’ rights on these shares, such as tiglaividends and to vote.

. EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS is computed as follows:

Number of EPS (NT$)
Amounts (Numerator) Shares Before After
Before After (Denominator) Income Income
Income Tax Income Tax (In Thousands) Tax Tax
Nine months ended September 30, 2011
Basic EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
of the parent $ 111,217,377 $ 102,622,631 25913755 $ 429 $ 3.96
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - - 10,178
Diluted EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
of the parent (including effect of dilutive
potential common shares) $ 111,217,377 $ 102,622,631 25923933 $ 429 $ 3.96
(Continued)
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Number of EPS (NT$)

Amounts (Numerator) Shares Before After
Before After (Denominator) Income Income
Income Tax Income Tax (In Thousands) Tax Tax
Nine months ended September 30, 2010
Basic EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
of the parent $ 126,801,996 $ 120,884,560 25904889 $ 489 $ 4.67
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - - 12,923
Diluted EPS
Earnings available to common shareholders
of the parent (including effect of dilutive
potential common shares) $ 126,801,996 $ 120,884,560 25917812 $ 489 $ 4.66
(Concluded)

If the Company may settle the obligation by cashjssuing shares, or in combination of both casth an
shares, profit sharing to employees which will le¢tled in shares should be included in the weighted
average number of shares outstanding in calculatfadiluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive affe
The number of shares is estimated by dividing theumnt of profit sharing to employees in stock bg th
closing price (after considering the dilutive etffet dividends) of the common shares on the balaheet
date. Such dilutive effect of the potential shameeds to be included in the calculation of diluERS
until the shares of profit sharing to employeesrasolved in the shareholders’ meeting in the fuithgy
year.

The average number of shares outstanding for ERSIlation has been considered for the effect of
retrospective adjustments. This adjustment caaaet of the basic and diluted after income tax &S
the nine months ended September 30, 2010 to remh&if$4.67 and NT$4.66, respectively.

26. DISCLOSURES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Fair values of financial instruments were a®ves:

September 30
2011 2010
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss $ 606,492 $ 606,492 $ 20,360 $ 20,360
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,255,050 3,255,050 30,357,200 30,357,200
Held-to-maturity financial assets 8,783,258 8,848,693 14,583,346 14,767,973
Financial assets carried at cost 4,392,806 - 4,464,801 -
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss 210,610 210,610 74,741 74,741
Hedging derivative financial liabilities 356 356 1,065 1,065
Bonds payable (including current portion) 22,500,000 22,561,211 4,500,000 4,547,696
Long-term bank loans (including current

portion) 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,233,615 1,233,615
Other long-term payables (including current

portion) 7,275,104 7,275,104 8,145,370 8,145,370
Obligations under capital leases 725,137 725,137 707,047 707,047
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b. Methods and assumptions used in the estimatitarosalues of financial instruments

1) The aforementioned financial instruments do inotude cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
other financial assets, refundable deposits, gkam-loans, payables and guarantee deposits. The
carrying amounts of these financial instrumentsraxmate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

2) Except for derivatives, available-for-sale amddito-maturity financial assets were based orr thei
quoted market prices.

3) The fair values of those derivatives are deteechi using valuation techniques incorporating
estimates and assumptions that were consistenpwétrailing market conditions.

4) Financial assets carried at cost have no quwieds in an active market and entail an unreadgnab
high cost to obtain verifiable fair values. Theref no fair value is presented.

5) Fair value of bonds payable was based on thueitegl market price.

6) Fair values of long-term bank loans, other Itengn payables and obligations under capital leases
were based on the present value of expected aash, flvhich approximate their carrying amounts.

c. The changes in fair value of derivatives congrdor the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010 estimated using valuation techniques weregrezed as a net gain of NT$395,882 thousand and a
net loss of NT$54,381 thousand, respectively.

d. As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, financiaktasexposed to fair value interest rate risk were
NT$9,390,766 thousand and NT$39,907,290 thousasgectively; financial liabilities exposed to fair
value interest rate risk were NT$65,914,126 thodsard NT$50,114,445 thousand, respectively; and
financial liabilities exposed to cash flow interesite risk were NT$1,650,356 thousand and
NT$1,547,897 thousand, respectively.

e. Movements of the unrealized gains or lossesimendcial instruments for the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 20:

From
Available- Equity Gain (Loss) on
for-sale Method Cash Flow
Financial Assets Investments Hedges Total

Balance, beginning ¢

period $ 86,158 $ 23,462 $ (331) $ 109,289
Recognized directly i

shareholders’ equity (1,113,956) (42,035) (39) (1,156,030)
Removed fron

shareholders’ equity

and recognized in

earnings (180,269) - 227 (180,042)
Effect ofchanges it

consolidated entities (269) 269 - -
Balance, end of peri $ (1,208,33) $ (18,309 $ (14%) $ (1,226,78)
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Nine Months Ended September 30, 2(0

From
Available- Equity Gain (Loss) on
for-sale Method Cash Flow
Financial Assets Investments Hedges Total

Balance, beginning ¢

period $ 424,128 $ 29,493 $ - $ 453,621
Recognized directly i

shareholders’ equity 242,902 8,895 (434) 251,363
Removed frm

shareholders’ equity

and recognized in

earnings (186,315) - - (186,315)
Balance, end of peri $ 480,71! $ 38,38¢ $ (439 $ 518,66

Information about financial risks

1)

2)

3)

4)

Market risk. The derivative financial instrunercategorized as financial assets/liabilitiesaat f
value through profit or loss are mainly used todeethe market exchange rate fluctuations of
foreign-currency assets and liabilities; thereftine, market exchange rate risk of derivatives bell
offset by the foreign exchange risk of these hedgmds. Available-for-sale financial assets and
held-to-maturity financial assets held by the Conypare mainly fixed-interest-rate debt securities
and publicly traded stocks; therefore, the fludtueat in market interest rates and market pricel wil
result in changes in fair values of these debtritges!

Credit risk. Credit risk represents the potdritiss that would be incurred by the Company éf th
counter-parties or third-parties breached contrad&nancial instruments with positive fair values
at the balance sheet date are evaluated for crs#tit The Company evaluated whether the
financial instruments for any possible counterdpartor third-parties are reputable financial
institutions, business enterprises, and governmgencies and accordingly, the Company believed
that the Company’s exposure to credit risk wassigptificant.

Liquidity risk. The Company has sufficient ogténg capital and bank facilities to meet cash
needs upon settlement of derivative financial imsnts, bonds payable and bank loans.
Therefore, the liquidity risk is low.

Cash flow interest rate risk. The Company nyainkvests in fixed-interest-rate debt securities.
Therefore, cash flows are not expected to fluctsageificantly due to changes in market interest
rates. The long-term bank loans were floating-teaé®s; therefore, changes in the market interest
rates will result in changes in the interest rdtéhe long-term bank loans, which will affect fugur
cash flows.

The Company seeks to reduce the effects ofdutash flow related interest rate changes by pilynar
using derivative financial instruments.
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The Company’s long-term bank loans bear floatingrest rates; therefore, changes in the market
interest rate may cause future cash flows to bati@l Accordingly, the Company entered into an
interest rate swap contract in order to hedge dish risk caused by floating interest rates.
Information about outstanding interest rate swagreat consisted of the following:

Expectec Expected Timing for the
HedgingFinancial Cash Flow Recognitior of Gains
Hedged Iterr Instrument Fair Value Generated Perioc  or Losses from Hedg
Septembe 30, 201:
Long-termbank Interest rate swa $ (356 2011 to 201 2011 to 201
loans contract
September 30, 20:.
Long-termbank Interest rate swa (1,06Y) 2010 to 201 2010to 212

loans contract

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Except as disclosed in the consolidated finant&ikements and other notes, the following is a summi
significant related party transactions:

a.

Investees of TSMC

GUC (prior to July 2011, GUC was a subsidiary. c8iduly 2011, GUC is accounted for using the
equity method. The related party information betwéhe Company and GUC as of and for the three
months ended September 30, 2011 is disclosedlas/fo)

VIS (accounted for using the equity method)

SSMC (accounted for using the equity method)

Indirect investee

VisEra Technology Company, Ltd. (VisEra), an indir@vestee accounted for using the equity method
lI?/Iyo:[resclpl/l,(35{n indirect investee accounted for usiegetiuity method by TSMC.

Others:

Related parties over which the Company has sigmifiinfluence but with which the Company had no
material transactions.

2011 201C
Amount % Amount %
For thenine months ended Septem 3C
Sale:
GUC $ 1,586,73. - $ - -
VIS 225,09: - 190,01t -
VisEre 9,25¢ - 73,03(
Other: 16,86: - 9,08¢ -
$ 1,837,93 - $ 27213 -
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2011 2010
Amount Amount
Purchase
VIS $ 4,333,14 2 $ 3,664,12. 2
SSMC 2,963,86 2 3,383,59 2
Other: 124,67. -
7,421,68 $ 7,047,72
Manufacturing expens
VisEra (primarily outsourcing and rer $  46,54: $ 77,69t
VIS (rent 5,90 -
$ 52,44¢ $ 77,69¢
Researc and development expen
VisEre $ 17,20¢ $ 7,19¢
VIS (primarily rent 1,98¢ 8,73(
Other: - - 11C -
$ 19,19( - $ 16,03¢ -
Sales of property, plant and equipr and
other assets
VIS $ 36,00¢ $ 37,01:
VisEre - 4,41¢
SSMC - 2,401
$ 36,00¢ $ 43,83(
Purchas of property, plant and equipm
VisEre $ 11,11 $ -
VIS - 15,86
$ 11,11¢ $ 15,86
Non-operating income and ga
VIS (primarily technical service income) $ 179,06 4 $ 226,25¢ 2
SSMC (primarily technical service income) 163,13: 4 145,62! 1
VisEra (rent 2,20( - -
$ 344,39 8 $ 371,88 3
As of September !
Receivable
GUC $ 569,92 $ -
VisEre 1,86¢ - 11,29t
Other: 6,87¢ 1 -
$ 578,67 ¢ $ 1129
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2011 2010

Amount % Amount %
Other eceivable
VIS $ 85,45: 64 $ 150,58 74
SSMC 47,92 36 49,75: 24
Other: 52E - 4, 32¢ 2

$ 133,89 10C $ 204,66 10C

Payable
VIS $ 1,011,67 74 $ 1,124,10 69
SSMC 342,65: 25 434,23 27
Other: 6,86¢ 1 59,28 4

$ 1,361,19: 10C $ 1,617,62 10C

The sales prices and payment terms to relatecepawtere not significantly different from those afes

to third parties. For other related party transast, prices and terms were determined in accoedanc
with mutual agreements.

The Company leased certain office space and fasilirom VIS. The lease terms and prices were
determined in accordance with mutual agreement$ie rBntal expense was paid monthly and the
related expenses were classified under researctergiopment expenses and manufacturing expenses.

The Company leased certain factory building fronsBfa. The lease terms and prices were
determined in accordance with mutual agreementde flental expense was paid monthly and
classified under manufacturing expenses.

The Company leased certain machinery and equipitoeXisEra. The lease terms and prices were
determined in accordance with mutual agreementse réntal income was received monthly and the
related income was classified under non-operatingre and gains.

28. PLEDGED OR MORTGAGED ASSETS

The Company provided certain assets as collatezatlynfor long-term bank loans, land lease agredmen
and customs duty guarantee, which were as follows:

September 3l
2011 201C
Other financial asse $ 139,32 $ 169,02
Property, plant and equipment, - 1,953,61
Other asse - 20,00(

$ 13932  $ 214264

29. SIGNIFICANT LONG-TERM LEASES
The Company leases several parcels of land, factony office premises from the Science Park

Administration and Jhongli Industrial Park Serv@enter. These operating leases expire on variates d
from December 2011 to September 2030 and can lesvezhupon expiration.
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The Company entered into lease agreements foffit® @remises and certain office equipment located
the United States, Europe, Japan, Shanghai andamaiwlhese operating leases expire between 2011 and
2020 and can be renewed upon expiration.

As of September 30, 2011, future lease payments agfollows:

Year Amount

2011 (4" quarter $ 159,78
2012 672,74
2013 636,84t
2014 612,34
201& 588,33
2016 and thereafte 4,686,73;

$ 7.356,79

. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Significant commitments and contingencies of thenfany as of September 30, 2011, excluding those
disclosed in other notes, were as follows:

a. Under a technical cooperation agreement with,ITie R.O.C. Government or its designee approved
by TSMC can use up to 35% of TSMC'’s capacity if TSKloutstanding commitments to its customers
are not prejudiced. The term of this agreemefuri§ive years beginning from January 1, 1987 and i
automatically renewed for successive periods @& figars unless otherwise terminated by either party
with one year prior notice.

b. Under several foundry agreements, TSMC shadlirvesa portion of its production capacity for cirta
major customers that have guarantee deposits VB . As of September 30, 2011, TSMC had a
total of US$14,051 thousand of guarantee deposits.

c. Under a Shareholders Agreement entered intoRhtlips and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March 30,
1999, the parties formed a joint venture compar§M6S, which is an integrated circuit foundry in
Singapore. TSMC’s equity interest in SSMC was 32%levertheless, Philips parted with its
semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP iB.8eptember 2006. TSMC and NXP B.V.
purchased all the SSMC shares owned by EDB InvegtmPte Ltd. pro rata according to the
Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 2006. Aitepurchase, TSMC and NXP B.V. currently
own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSMC sharsgeatively. TSMC and Philips (now NXP
B.V.) are required, in the aggregate, to purchadeaat 70% of SSMC'’s capacity, but TSMC alone is
not required to purchase more than 28% of the dgpadf any party defaults on the commitment and
the capacity utilization of SSMC fall below a sgiecpercentage of its capacity, the defaulting pést
required to compensate SSMC for all related unalelcosts.

d. In August 2006, TSMC filed a lawsuit against 8&mductor Manufacturing International Corporation,
SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC Americas (aggregatelyrreteto as “SMIC”) in the Superior Court of
California for Alameda County for breach of a 208§eement that settled an earlier trade secret
misappropriation and patent infringement litigatibetween the parties, as well as for trade secret
misappropriation, seeking injunctive relief and mtamy damages. In September 2006, SMIC filed a
cross-complaint against TSMC in the same courtgaite breach of settlement agreement, implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. SMIC dlded a civil action against TSMC in November
2006 with the Beijing People’s High Court allegitgfamation and breach of good faith. On June 10,
2009, the Beijing People’s High Court ruled in faxad TSMC and dismissed SMIC’s lawsuit. On
November 4, 2009, after a two-month trial, a junythe California action found SMIC to have both
breached the 2005 settlement agreement and migajgienl TSMC's trade secrets. TSMC has
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subsequently settled both lawsuits with SMIC. Band to the new settlement agreement, the parties
have agreed to the entry of a stipulated judgmef@vor of TSMC in the California action, and t@th
dismissal of SMIC’s appeal against the Beijing Higburt's finding in favor of TSMC. Under the
new settlement agreement and the related stipulatigenent, SMIC has agreed to make cash payments
by installments to TSMC totaling US$200 million, ish are in addition to the US$135 million
previously paid to TSMC under the 2005 settlemegte@ment, and, conditional upon relevant
government regulatory approvals, to issue to TSM@tal of 1,789,493,218 common shares of
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpanatiand a three-year warrant to purchase
695,914,030 common shares (subject to adjustmdén§emiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation at HK$1.30 per share (subject to adjast). TSMC has received the approval from the
Investment Commission of Ministry of Economic Affaiand acquired the above mentioned common
shares in July 2010 and obtained the subsequeht setiement income in accordance with the
agreement.

e. In June 2010, Keranos, LLC. filed a lawsuitha J.S. District Court for the Eastern DistrictTafxas
alleging that TSMC, TSMC North America, and sevater leading technology companies infringe
three expired U.S. patents. In response, TSMC, C®rth America, and several co-defendants in
the Texas case filed a lawsuit against KeranofienU.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California in November 2010, seeking a judgmentlatéry that they did not infringe the asserted
patents, and that those patents are invalid. Ttvesditigations have been consolidated into algsing
case in the U.S. District Court for the Easterntiiisof Texas. The outcome cannot be determiried a
this time.

f. In December 2010, Ziptronix, Inc. filed a comiplain the U.S. District Court for the Northern Dist
of California accusing TSMC, TSMC North America amte other company of allegedly infringing six
U.S. patents. This litigation is in its very eashages and therefore the outcome of the case thano
determined at this time.

g. TSMC entered into an agreement with a countgrpar2003 whereby TSMC China is obligated to
purchase certain property, plant and equipmenteatgreed-upon price within the contract period. |
the purchase is not completed, TSMC China is otdijao compensate the counterparty for the loss
incurred. The property, plant and equipment hasenbin use by TSMC China since 2004 and are
being depreciated over their estimated servicesliveThe related obligation totaled NT$6,458,725
thousand and NT$7,235,592 thousand as of SepteBheR011 and 2010, respectively, which is
included in other long-term payables.

h. Amounts available under unused letters of cieslinf September 30, 2011 were NT$139,187 thousand.

31. OTHERS

The significant financial assets and liabilitiesidminated in foreign currencies were as follows:

September 3l
2011 201C
Foreign Foreign
Currencies Exchange Rate  Currencies Exchange Rate
(In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note)

Financial asse
Monetaryitems

usD $ 3,518,40 30.55¢ $ 4,209,100 31.2¢-31.3¢

EUR 135,21 41.5¢ 210,37. 42.5842.7:

JPY 21,799,35 0.399¢ 19,881,40 0.3752-0.376¢

RMB 220,42 4.81 258,40t 4.65-4.664¢

(Continued)
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32.

September 3l

2011

201C

Foreign
Currencies

Exchange Rate

Foreign

Currencies Exchange Rate

(In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note)

Non-monetaryitems

uUSsSD $ 135,95( 30.55¢ $ 158,69¢ 31.2¢-31.3¢

HKD 697,90:. 3.92 1,002,11 4.04
Investments accounted f

using equity method

uUsSD 281,44t 30.55¢ 283,78 31.2¢-31.3¢
Financial liabilitie:
Monetaryitems

uUsSD 1,743,08: 30.55¢ 2,042,22 31.2¢-31.3¢

EUR 135,96: 41.5¢ 141,25 42.5842.7:

JPY 23,521,54 0.399¢ 21,580,31 0.3752-0.376¢

RMB 372,70 4.81 546,17 4.65-4.664¢

(Concluded)

Note: Exchange rate represents the number of Nolfard for which one foreign currency could be

exchanged.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures requirgdtiie SFB for TSMC and its investees in which all
significant intercompany balances and transactiwesliminated upon consolidation:

a.

b.

Financings provided: Please see Table 1 atfache

Endorsement/guarantee provided: None;
Marketable securities held: Please see Tabht@&aghed;

Marketable securities acquired or disposed obats or prices of at least NT$100 million or 26f4he
paid-in capital: Please see Table 3 attached;

Acquisition of individual real estate properta&sosts of at least NT$100 million or 20% of gad-in
capital: Please see Table 4 attached;

Disposal of individual real estate propertiepates of at least NT$100 million or 20% of thedsim
capital: None;

Total purchases from or sales to related padiesunting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the
paid-in capital: Please see Table 5 attached;

Receivable from related parties amounting teeast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Please see Table 6 attached;

Names, locations, and related information ofeistees over which TSMC exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 7 attached;
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j- Information on investment in Mainland China

1) The name of the investee in Mainland China,nttaén businesses and products, its issued capital,
method of investment, information on inflow or dow¥ of capital, percentage of ownership, equity
in the net gain or net loss, ending balance, ammadived as dividends from the investee, and the
limitation on investee: Please see Table 8 atthche

2) Significant direct or indirect transactions withe investee, its prices and terms of payment,
unrealized gain or loss, and other related infolmnatvhich is helpful to understand the impact of
investment in Mainland China on financial report®lease see Table 9 attached.

k. Intercompany relationships and significant intenpany transactions: Please see Table 9 attached.

33. OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Company’s only reportable segment is the fousdgment. The foundry segment engages mainly in
the manufacturing, selling, packaging, testing aachputer-aided design of integrated circuits arfeemot
semiconductor devices and the manufacturing of maskhe Company also had other operating segments
that did not exceed the quantitative threshold. eseh segments mainly engage in the researching,
developing, and providing SoC (System on Chip) glesind also engage in the researching, developing,
designing, manufacturing and selling of solid siigbting devices and renewable energy and effigren
related technologies and products.

The Company uses the operating profit as the meamnt for segment profit and the basis of perfogaan
assessment. There was no material inconsistentyeber the accounting policies of the operating
segment and the accounting policies described te Ro

The Company’s operating segment information wdslasvs:

Foundry Others Elimination Total

Nine months endeSeptember 2, 2011

Sales from extial customel $ 318,12595 $ 4,243)520 % - $322,369,47
Sale:among intersegmer 1,588,60. 6,22¢ (1,594,82) -
Operating profit (loss 109,734,16 (1,106,80) - 108,627,36
Nine months endeSeptember &, 2010

Sales from extnal customer 301,91!,96¢ 7,479,73. - 309,395,70
Sales among intersegme 2,658,35! 283 (2,658,63) -
Operatingprofit (loss 117,913,32 (251,47() - 117,661,85
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TABLE 1

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

FINANCINGS PROVIDED
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

Financing | Financial statement . h (US$in Drawn : ) Transaction ompany
No. Counter-party Each Period (US$ in ; Interest Rate| Reason for Financing | for Bad Financing
Name Account . Thousands) (US$in Item Value Amounts I
Borrowing Thousands) (Note 3) Thousands) Debt Amount Limits
Company (Note 3) (Note 2)
1 |TSMC PartnergLong-term receivabled SMC China (Note 1) $ 7,638500 $ 7,638,500 $ 7,638,500 0.25%-0.26%Purchase equipment $ - -1 8 -1 $ -1 $ 34,888,811
from related parties (US$ 250,000) (US$ 250,000) (US$ 250,000
Other receivables fro|TSMC Solar (Note 1) 1,222,160 1,222,160 168,047 0.4017% | Operating capital - - - - 34,888,811
related parties (US$ 40,000) (US$ 40,000) (US$  5,500)
2 |TSMC Globa |Othelreceivablis fromTSMC (Note 1. 24,684,00 10,693,90 10,693,90 0.3544%  |Support the parel - - - - 44,274,92
related parties (US$ 850,000) (US$ 350,000) (US$ 350,000 company'’s short-term

operation requiremen

Note 1: The total amount for lending to a compamyféinding for a short-term period shall not excéenl percent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC Paxreard TSMC Global, respectively.

In addition, tb&l amount lendable to any one
borrower shall be no more than thirty percent (30%je borrower’s net worth.

While offshore sutisiies whose voting shares are 100% owned, dyrecihdirectly, by TSMC will not subjected to thisstriction.
Note 2: The total amount available for lending msg shall not exceed the net worth of TSMC PartaedsT SMC Global, respectively.

Note 3: The maximum balance for the period andrepbalance represents the amounts approved by Bbaridectors.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 2

September 30, 2011
- . - . . . Carrying Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units (Foreign Currencies Percentage of A_sset Value ) Note
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
TSMC Corporate bon
Nan Ya Plastics Corporati - Held-to-maturity financial asse - $ 1,099,55! N/A $ 1,126,000
China Steel Corporation - ” - 304,443 N/A 305,871
Formosa Petrochemical Corporation - ” - 175,066 N/A 175,086
Taiwan Power Company - ” - 75,099 N/A 75,105
Stock
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpiorat - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,788 2,735,777 7 2,735,777
TSMC Global Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 1 44,274,921 100 44,274,921
equity method
TSMC Partners Subsidiary ” 988,268 34,888,811 100 34,888,811
TSMC Solar Subsidiary " 1,118,000 10,847,842 100 10,847,842
VIS Investee accounted for using equity ” 628,223 8,918,553 38 6,784,814
method
SSMC Investee accounted for using equity ” 314 6,109,136 39 5,878,735
methoc
TSMC North America Subsidiary ” 11,000 3,001,878 100 3,001,878
TSMC SSL Subsidiary " 227,000 2,063,176 100 2,063,176
Xintec Investee with a controlling financial ” 94,011 1,610,795 40 1,610,795
interes
GuC Investee accounted for using equity ” 46,688 1,117,076 35 5,789,294
method
TSMC Europe Subsidiary ” - 209,723 100 209,723
TSMC Japan Subsidiary ” 6 165,630 100 165,630
TSMC Korea Subsidiary ” 80 22,342 100 22,342
United Industrial Gases Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 16,783 ,5B3B 10 328,138
Shin-Etsu Handotai Taiwan Co., Ltd. - " 10,500 105,000 7 347,827
W.K. Technology Fund IV - ” 4,000 40,000 2 40,325
Fund
Horizon Ventures Fund - Financial assets carried at cost - 103,997 12 103,992
Crimson Asia Capital - ” - 55,259 1 55,259
Capita
TSMC China Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - 8,460,740 100 8,493,403
equity method
VTAF Il Subsidiary " - 1,247,111 52 1,226,659
VTAF Il Subsidiary ” - 1,022,280 98 1,016,511
Emerging Alliance Subsidiary ” - 291,196 99 291,196
TSMC Solal Stock
Motech Investee accounted for using equity  |Investments accounted for using 87,480 5,999,174 20 4,194,439
method equity method
TSMC Solar Europe Subsidiary ” - 270,054 100 270,054
TSMC Solar NA Subsidiary ” 1 73,371 100 73,371
(Continued)
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September 30, 2011

Carrying Value

Market Value or Net|

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemetrAccount Shares/Units . f Percentage of Asset Value Note
(Foreign Currencies . ) .
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
Capital
VTAF Il Investee accounted for using equity  |Investments accounted for using - $ 1,696,911 47 $ 1,696,911
method equity method
TSMC SSL Stock
TSMC Lighting NA Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 1 3,051 100 3,051
equity method
TSMC Partnet Corporate bon
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - Held-to-maturity financial assets - uUs$ 310 N/A US$ 20,367
General Elec Cap Corp. Mtn - " - US$ 20,080 N/A US$ 20,809
Common stock
TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC Development) Subsidia Investments accounted for using 1 US$ 454,661 100 US$ 454,661
equity method
VisEra Holding Company Investee accounted for gisiquity ” 43,000 US$ 89,041 49 US$ 89,041
method
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. 8D | Subsidiary ” 787 US$ 11,258 97 US$ 11,258
InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc.L@C. |Subsidiary ” 14,153 US$ 9,988 97 US$ 9,988
(ISDF 11)
TSMC Technology Subsidiary n 1 US$ 10,420 100 US$ 10,420
TSMC Canada Subsidiary " 2,300 UsS$ 3,864 100 US$ 3,864
Mcube Inc. Investee accounted for using equity ” 5,333 - 82 -
method
Preferred stock
Mcube Inc. Investee accounted for using equity  |Investments accounted for using 1,000 - 5 -
methoc equity metho
Fund
Shanghz Walden Venture Capital Enterpr - Financial assets carried at ¢ - US¢  5,00( 8 US$  5,00(
TSMC North America Stock
Spansion Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 286 US$8,490 - US$ 3,490
TSMC Development Corporate bond
GE Capital Corp. - Held-to-maturity financial assets - Us$ 221 N/A US$ 20,809
JP Morgan Chase & Co. - " - US$ 15,000 N/A US$ 15,008
Stock
WaferTech Subsidiary Investments accounted for using 293,640 US$ 215,620 100 US$ 215,620
equity method
Emerging Allianc: Common stoc
RichWave Technology Corp. - Financial assets carried at cost 4,074 US$645L 10 US$ 1,545
Global Investment Holding Inc. - ” 11,124 US$ 3,065 6 US$ 3,065
Preferred stock
Audierce, Inc - Financial assets carried at ¢ 1,654 usg 25C - usg 25C
Next 10, Inc. - " 8 Uss$ 500 - uUss$ 500
Pixim, Inc. - ” 4,641 us$ 1,137 2 uUs$ 1,137
QST Holdings, LLC - ” - Uss$ 142 4 uss$ 142
Capital
VentureTech Alliance Holdings, LLC (VTA Holdings) Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 7 -
equity method
(Continued
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Carrying Value

Market Value or Net

Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemetrAccount Shares/Units (Foreign Currencies Percentgge of A§set Value ' Note
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) 8
in Thousands)
VTAF Il ICommon stock
Aether Systems, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,600 US$503L 25 uUs$ 1,503
RichWave Technology Corp. - " 1,267 US$ 1,036 3 Us$ 1,036
Sentelic - " 1,806 Uss 2,607 9 uss 2,607
Preferred stock
5V Technologies, Ic. - Financial assets carried at 2,89C Us¢  2,16¢ 4 USs$  2,16¢
Aquantia - " 4,556 US$ 4,316 3 US$ 4,316
Audience, Inc. - ” 12,378 Us$ 2,378 3 UsS$ 2,378
Impinj, Inc. - ” 475 US$ 1,000 - US$ 1,000
Next 10, Inc. - " 132 uUs$ 1,110 2 Us$ 1,110
Pixim, Inc. - " 33,347 Us$ 1,878 2 UsS$ 1,878
Power Analog Microelectronics - ” 7,027 US$ 3,383 19 Us$ 3,383
QST Holdings, LLC - " - Us$ 593 13 Us$ 593
Capital
VTA Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using - - 31 -
equity method
VTAF Il Common stoc
Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Invesitits accounted for using 11,868 Us$ 1,425 57 Us$ 1,425
equity method
Accton Wireless Broadband Co - Financial assets carried at ¢ 2,24¢ usg 31¢ 6 usg 31¢
Preferred stock
BridgeLux, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 6,771 US$7438 3 Us$ 8,745
Exclara, Inc. - " 59,695 Us$ 5,897 15 uUs$ 5,897
GTBF, Inc. - ” 1,154 Us$ 1,500 N/A uUs$ 1,500
InvenSense, Inc. - " 816 uUs$ 1,000 1 Us$ 1,000
LiquidLeds Lighting Corp. - ” 1,600 Us$ 800 11 Uss$ 800
Neoconix, Inc. - ” 3,801 US$ 4,748 4 US$ 4,748
Powervation, Ltd. - ” 449 uUss 7,030 16 uUss$ 7,030
Silicon Technical Services, LLC - " 1,055 US$ 1,208 - US$ 1,208
Stion Corp. - ” 7,347 US$ 50,000 23 US$ 50,000
Tilera, Inc. - ” 3,890 Us$ 3,025 2 Us$ 3,025
Validity Sensors, Inc. - ” 9,340 US$ 3,456 4 Us$ 3,456
Capital
Growth Fund Limited (Growth Fund) Subsidiary Intrasnts accounted for using - Us$ 835 100 Us$ 835
equity metho
VTA Holdings Subsidiary ” - - 62 -
Growth Fund Common stock
SiliconBlue Technologies, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 5,107 uUss$ 62 7 1 Us$ 762
Veebeam - ” 10 uss$ 25 - uss$ 25
ISDF Common stock
Integrated Memory Logic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 2,436 $US7,601 3 uUs$ 7,601
Memsic, Inc. - ” 1,286 Us$ 3,201 5 Us$ 3,201
Preferred stock
Sonics, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 230 Us$ 49 2 Us$ 497
(Continued
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Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units (Forei yn gurrencies Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) relg Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
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ISDF Il Common stock
Memsic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,072 $US2,669 5 Us$ 2,669
Alchip Technologies Limite - Financial issets carried at c« 7,52( USs§ 3,664 14 Us§ 3,664
Sonics, Inc. - 1 278 uss$ 10 3 Uss$ 10
Goyatek Technology, Corp. - ” 932 Us$ 361 6 Us$ 361
Auden Technology MFG. Co., Ltd. - ” 1,049 uss 223 3 uss$ 223
Preferred stock
FangTek, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 1,032 US$ 48 1 6 Us$ 148
Sonics, Inc. - " 264 us$ 455 3 uss 455
Xintec Capital
Compositech Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 587 g -
TSMC Solar Europe Stock
TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Subsidiary Investments acteml for using 1 EUR 6,398 100 EUR 6,398
equity method
TSMC Globa Corporate bon
Aust + Nz Banking Group - Held-to-maturity financial assets 20,000 USH,000 N/A US$ 19,819
Commonwealth Banof Australia - " 25,000 US$ 25,000 N/A US$ 24,870
Commonwealth Bank of Australia - " 25,000 US$ 25,000 N/A US$ 25,033
JP Morgan Chase + C - 1 35,000 US$ 35,044 N/A US$ 35,051
Nationwide Building Society-UK Government Guarantee - ” 8,000 US$ 8,000 N/A Us$ 8,003
Westpac Banking Corp. - " 25,000 US$ 25,000 N/A US$ 24,765
Westpac Banking Corp. 12/12 Frn - " 5,000 US$ 5,000 N/A uUs$ 5,009
Government bond
Societe De Financement De Lec - Held-to-maturity financial assets 15,000 US3%$,000 N/A uUs$ 15,014
Money market fund
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshore - Available-for-sale financial assets 33 Uss 3 3 N/A Us$ 33
(Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED OR DISPOSED OF AT CO STS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 3

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Eridg Balance (Note 3)
Ketabl - . ial f Amount . Amount Amount Carrying Value Gain'(Loss) on Amount
Company Name Marketable S’\?curmes Type ang Financial Statement Counter-party Nau_Jre o Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign (Foreign Dlspo_sal Shares/Units (Foreign
ame Account Relationship = . | (In Thousands) = = P (Foreign S
(In Thousands)| Currencies in Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currencies in | Currencies in =~ | (In Thousands)| Currencies in
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Currencies in Thousands)
Thousands)
TSMC Stock
TSMC Solar Investments - Subsidiary -l $ - 1,118,000 $ 11,180,000 -1 8 -1 s -1 $ - 1,118,000 $ 10,847,842
accounted for using
equity metho
TSMC SSL ” - Subsidiary - - 227,000 2,270,000 - - - - 227,000 2,063,176
Capital
TSMC China Investments - Subsidiary - 4,252,270 - 2,176,200 - - - - - 8,460,740
accounted for using
equity method
TSMC Solar Stock
TSMC Solar Europe Investments - Subsidiary - 23,971 - 385,682 - - - - - 270,054
accounted for using
equity method
Capital
VTAF Il Investments - Investee accounted - - - 168,548 - - - - - 1,696,911
accounted for using for using equity
equity metho methoc
TSMC Solar  |_Stock
Europe TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Investments - Subsidiary 1| EUR 90 - | EUR 9,800 - | EUR - | EUR - | EUR - 1| EUR 6,398
accounted for using
equity method
TSMC Global |_Corporate bond
Alistate Life Gbl Fdg Secd Available-for-sale - - 4,430 US$ 4,824 - | US$ - 4430 | US$ 4,787 US$ 4,834| US$ 47) - | US$ -
financial assets
American Honda Fin Corp. Mtn ” - - 4,000 US$ 3,995 - - 4,000 US$ 4,005 US$ 3,985| US$ 20 - -
Anz National Intl Ltd. ” - - 3,500 US$ 3,554 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,555| US$ 3,515| US$ 40 - -
Archer Daniels Midland Co. ” - - - - 7,000 | US$ 7,000 7,000 US$ 7,010/ US$ 7,000 US$ 10 - -
Astrazeneca Plc ” - - 3,150 | US$ 3,397 - - 3,150 | US$ 3,356| US$ 3,456 US$ (100) - -
AT+T Wireless " - - 3,500 US$ 3,823 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,762| US$ 3,979| US$ (217) - -
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya P R ” - - 3,250 | US$ 3,249 - - 3,250 | US$ 3,251| US$ 3,250| US$ 1 - -
Bank of Nova Scotia ” - - 5,000 US$ 5,000 - - 5,000| US$ 5,012| US$ 5,000 US$ 12 - -
Barclays Bank Plc ” - - 12,000| US$ 11,997 - - 12,000 US$ 12,022| US$ 12,035 US$ (13) - -
Barclays Bk Plc UK Govt Cr ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,108 5,000| US$ 5,099| US$ 5,108| US$ ©)] - -
Bb+T Corporation ” - - - - 3,840 | US$ 3,990 3,840 | US$ 3,977| US$ 3,990| US$ (13) - -
Bear Stearns Cos Inc. " - - 3,500 | US$ 3,494 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,465| US$ 3,360| US$ 105 - -
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. Del ” - - 3,500 US$ 3,517 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,521| US$ 3,500| US$ 21 - -
Bhp Billiton Fin USA Ltd. ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,443 4,000 | US$ 4,447 US$  4,443| US$ 4 - -
Bnp Paribas SA ” - - 3,810| US$ 3,844 - - 3,810 | US$ 3,838| US$ 3,844| US$ 6) - -
Boeing Cap Corp. ” - - 2,925| US$ 3,192 - - 2,925| US$ 3,180| US$ 3,235| US$ (55) - -
Bp Capital Markets Plc ” - - 3,900 | US$ 3,988 - - 3,900 | US$ 3,992| US$ 3,969| US$ 23 - -
(Continued
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal (Note 2) Eridg Balance (Note 3)
- X . Amount . Amount Amount Carrying Value Gain'(Loss) on Amount
Company Name Marketable S’\?cunnes Type ang Financial Statement Counter-party Nature Of. Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign (Foreign Dlspo_sal Shares/Units (Foreign
ame Account Relationship = < | (In Thousands) 2 = S (Foreign =
(In Thousands)| Currencies in Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currencies in | Currencies in =~ .| (In Thousands)| Currencies in
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) C#]rrenmes n Thousands)
ousands)
Bp Capital Markets Plc Available-for-sale - - - | US$ - 7,160 | US$ 7,160 7,160 | US$ 7,201| US$ 7,160| US$ 41 - | Us$ -
financial assets
Chevron Corp. ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,305 4,000 | US$ 4,286| US$ 4,305| US$ (19) - -
Cie Financement Foncier ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,019 - - 4,000 US$ 4,034| US$ 4,029| US$ 5 - -
Cisco Systems Inc. ” - - - - 7,050 | US$ 7,050 7,050 | US$ 7,073| US$ 7,050| US$ 23 - -
Citigroup Funding Inc. " - - 16,000| US$ 16,323 - - 16,000 | US$ 16,337| US$ 16,262| US$ 75 - -
Citigroup Funding Inc. ” - - 7,300 US$ 7,446 - - 7,300 | US$ 7,440| US$ 7,448| US$ ®) - -
Citigroup Inc. ” - - 5,000 US$ 5,490 - - 5,000 | US$ 5478| US$ 5,360| US$ 118 - -
Coca Cola Co. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,002 - - 4,000 US$ 4,003| US$ 4,000 US$ 3 - -
Countrywide Finl Corp. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,208 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,221| US$ 4,291| US$ (70) - -
Credit Suisse New York ” - - 3,945| US$ 4,090 - - 3,945| US$ 4,069| US$ 4,073| US$ 4) - -
Credit Suisse New York ” - - - - 3,200 | US$ 3,200 3,200 | US$ 3,238| US$ 3,200| US$ 38 - -
Dexia Credit Local ” - - 6,000 US$ 5,976 - - 6,000 US$ 5983| US$ 6,000 US$ 17) - -
Dexia Credit Local " - - 4,000| US$ 3,984 - - 4,000 | US$ 3,927| US$ 4,000| US$ (73) - -
Dexia Credit Local S.A ” - - 4,000 US$ 3,992 - - 4,000 US$ 3,976| US$ 4,000 US$ (24) - -
Dexia Credit Local SA NY " - - 5,000| US$ 4,983 - - 5,000 | US$ 4,952| US$ 5,000 US$ (48) - -
Finance for Danish Ind ” - - 3,800| US$ 3,799 - - 3,800 | US$ 3,808| US$ 3,801| US$ 7 - -
General Elec Cap Corp. ” - - 7,000 US$ 7,002 - - 7,000 US$ 7,005 US$ 7,002| US$ 3 - -
General Elec Cap Corp. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,110 - - 4,000 US$ 4,095 US$ 4,117| US$ (22) - -
General Elec Cap Corp. ” - - - - 5,000 | US$ 5,000 5,000 | US$ 5,037| US$ 5,000 US$ 37 - -
Georgia Pwr Co. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,006 - - 4,000 US$ 4,002| US$ 4,024| US$ (22) - -
Gmac LLC ” - - 4,600 US$ 4,731 - - 4,600 | US$ 4,715| US$ 4,726| US$ (11) - -
Goldman Sachs Group Inc. ” - - - - 3,400 | US$ 3,400 3,400 | US$ 3,425| US$ 3,400| US$ 25 - -
Hewlett Packard Co. ” - - 3,000 US$ 3,003 - - 3,000 US$ 3,004| US$ 2,995| US$ 9 - -
Household Fin Corp. ” - - 4,330 US$ 4,694 - - 4,330 | US$ 4,662| US$ 4,781| US$ (119) - -
HSBC Bank Plc ” - - 3,400| US$ 3,405 - - 3,400 | US$ 3,407| US$ 3,407 - - -
HSBC Fin Corp. " - - 2,900| UsS$ 3,074 - - 2,900 | US$ 3,074| US$ 3,142 US$ (68) - -
IBM Corp. ” - - 6,800| US$ 6,775 - - 6,800 | US$ 6,781| US$ 6,772| US$ 9 - -
Inc Bk Nv Neth St Cr Gtee " - - - - 8,500 | US$ 8,668 8,500 | US$ 8,655| US$ 8,668| US$ (13) - -
John Deer Capital Corp. Fdic GIT ” - - 3,500 US$ 3,616 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,601| US$ 3,634| US$ (33) - -
JP Morgan Chase + Co. ” - - 5,000| US$ 5,021 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,032| US$ 5,000 US$ 32 - -
Lloyds Tsb Bank Plc Ser 144A ” - - 5,950 | US$ 6,009 - - 5,950 | US$ 6,007 US$ 6,077| US$ (70) - -
Macquarie Bk Ltd. Sr " - - 3,900| US$ 3,975 9,300 | US$ 9,472 13,200 | US$ 13,423| US$ 13,455| US$ (32) - -
Massmutual Global Fdg Il Mediu ” - - 4,000 US$ 3,955 - - 4,000 US$ 3,991| US$ 3,926| US$ 65 - -
Mellon Fdg Corp. " - - 3,500 US$ 3475 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,479| US$ 3,404 US$ 75 - -
Merck + Co. Inc. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,032 - - 4,000 US$ 4,013| US$ 4,066| US$ (53) - -
Merrill Lynch + Co. Inc. ” - - 4,691| US$ 4,647 - - 4,691 | US$ 4,669| US$ 4,603| US$ 66 - -
Merrill Lynch + Co. Inc. ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,335 4,000 US$ 4,319| US$ 4,335| US$ (16) - -
Met Life Glob Funding | ” - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,000 3,000 US$ 3,004 US$ 3,000| US$ 4 - -
Metlife Inc. " - - 6,500 US$ 6,600 - - 6,500 | US$ 6,584| US$ 6,527 | US$ 57 - -
Microsoft Corp. ” - - 3,250| US$ 3,232 - - 3,250 | US$ 3,224| US$ 3,249| US$ (25) - -
Morgan Stanley ” - - - - 9,000 | US$ 9,000 9,000 | US$ 9,140| US$ 9,000| US$ 140 - -
Morgan Stanley Dean Witter ” - - 8,000 US$ 8,524 - - 8,000 | US$ 8,513| US$ 8,797| US$ (284) - -
National Australia Bank ” - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,035 3,000 US$ 3,040| US$ 3,034| US$ 6 - -
Pepsiamericas Inc. ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,329 4,000 US$ 4,308| US$ 4,329| US$ (21) - -
Philip Morris Intl Inc. " - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,640 4,000 US$ 4,591| US$ 4,640| US$ (49) - -
Princoa Global Fdg | Medium " - - 5,050 US$ 5,011 - - 5,050 | US$ 5,042| US$ 4,921| US$ 121 - -
Rabobank Nederland " - - 5,000| US$ 5,000 - - 5000 | US$ 5,000 US$ 4,997 US$ 3 - -
Royal Bk of Scotland Plc " - - 5,000 US$ 5,052 - - 5,000| US$ 5,045| US$ 5106| US$ (61) - -
Royal Bk Scotind Grp Plc 144A ” - - 9,450 | US$ 9,516 - - 9,450 | US$ 9,517| US$ 9,596| US$ (79) - -
(Continued)
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Sanofi Aventis Available-for-sale - - - | US$ - 4,000 | US$ 4,000 4,000 | US$ 4,003| US$ 4,000 US$ 3 - | Us$ -
financial assets
Sanofi Aventis ” - - - - 3,870 | US$ 3,870 3,870 | US$ 3,884 US$ 3,870| US$ 14 - -
Shell International Fin ” - - 4,515| US$ 4,536 - - 4,515| US$ 4,533| US$ 4,527| US$ 6 - -
Shell International Fin ” - - 3,200| US$ 3,248 - - 3,200 | US$ 3,256| US$ 3,227| US$ 29 - -
Standard Chartered BK NY " - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,000 3,000 | US$ 3,001| US$ 3,000| US$ 1 - -
State Str Corp. ” - - 6,420 US$ 6,417 - - 6,420 | US$ 6,423| US$ 6,382| US$ 41 - -
Sun Life Finl Global ” - - 4,400| US$ 4,332 - - 4,400 | US$ 4,351| US$ 4,304| US$ 47 - -
Suncorp Metway Ltd. ” - - 8,800| US$ 8,982 - - 8,800 | US$ 8,937| US$ 9,125| US$ (188) - -
Swedbank Hypotek AB ” - - 4,000 US$ 3,993 - - 4,000 US$ 3,998| US$ 4,002| US$ 4) - -
Swedbank Hypotek AB ” - - - - 4,100 | US$ 4,100 4,100 | US$ 4,086| US$ 4,100| US$ (14) - -
Teva Pharm Fin 1l " - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,000 4,000 US$ 4,019| US$ 4,000 US$ 19 - -
Teva Pharma Fin Ill LLC ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,016 - - 4,000 US$ 4,011 US$ 4,000| US$ 11 - -
Total Capital Canada Ltd. " - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,000 4,000 | US$ 4,013] US$ 4,000| US$ 13 - -
United Technologies Corp. ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,265 4,000 | US$ 4,244| US$ 4,266| US$ (22) - -
US Central Federal Cred " - - 4,000| US$ 4,084 4,500 | US$ 4,599 8,500 | US$ 8,664 US$ 8,692 US$ (28) - -
Verizon Communications ” - - - - 7,725| US$ 7,725 7,725| US$ 7,785| US$  7,725| US$ 60 - -
Virginia Elec + Pwr Co. ” - - - - 3,250 | US$ 3,489 3,250 | US$ 3,461 US$ 3,489| US$ (28) - -
Volkswagen Intl Fin NV ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,000 4,000 US$ 4,010/ US$ 4,000| US$ 10 - -
Wachovia Corp. Global Mediuni ” - - 5,000| US$ 5,141 - - 5,000 | US$ 5,142| US$ 5,138| US$ 4 - -
Wal Mart Stores Inc. ” - - 4,000 US$ 3,964 - - 4,000 US$ 3,968| US$ 3,986| US$ (18) - -
Wal Mart Stores Inc. ” - - 3,770 | US$ 4,325 - - 3,770 | US$ 4,261| US$ 4,383| US$ (122) - -
Westpac Banking Corp. ” - - 3,500 US$ 3,514 - - 3,500 | US$ 3,511| US$ 3,500| US$ 11 - -
Westpac Banking Corp. ” - - 4,000 US$ 4,005 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,022| US$ 4,044| US$ (22) - -
Wyeth ” - - 3,345| US$ 3,657 638 | US$ 697 3,983 | US$ 4,325| US$ 4,397| US$ (72) - -
Government bor
US Treasury N/B Available-for-sale - - 41,700| US$ 42,042 - - 41,700 | US$ 42,042 US$ 41,729| US$ 313 - -
financial assets
US Treasury N/B ” - - 11,100 US$ 10,976 - - 11,100 | US$ 10,941| US$ 11,084| US$ (143) - -
US Treasury N/B " - - 7,000 US$ 7,079 - - 7,000 | US$ 7,077| US$ 7,078 US$ @ - -
US Treasury N/B ” - - 5,250 US$ 5,212 30,175 | US$ 29,906 35425| US$ 35,154 US$ 35,101 US$ 53 - -
US Treasury N/B ” - - - - 19,900 | US$ 19,872 19,900 | US$ 19,888| US$ 19,872| US$ 16 - -
US Treasury N/B ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,084 10,000 US$ 10,073| US$ 10,084| US$ (11) - -
US Treasury N/B ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,042 10,000 | US$ 10,046| US$ 10,042| US$ 4 - -
US Treasury N/B " - - - - 10,000 | US$ 10,024 10,000 US$ 10,035/ US$ 10,024| US$ 11 - -
US Treasury N/B ” - - - - 10,000 | US$ 9,988 10,000 US$ 9,990| US$ 9,988| US$ 2 - -
US Treasury N/B " - - - - 3,300 | US$ 3,301 3,300 | US$ 3,298| US$ 3,301| US$ 3 - -
Agency bond
Fannie Mae Available-for-sale - - 16,104| US$ 16,102 - - 16,104 | US$ 16,116| US$ 16,098| US$ 18 - -
financial assets
Fannie Mae ” - - 11,100 US$ 11,096 - - 11,100 | US$ 11,109| US$ 11,096| US$ 13 - -
Fannie Mae " - - 8,765| US$ 8,763 11,500 | US$ 11,503 20,265| US$ 20,280 US$ 20,262 US$ 18 - -
Fannie Mae ” - - 4,600 US$ 4,589 - - 4,600 | US$ 4,606| US$ 4,598| US$ 8 - -
Fannie Mae " - - 3,900 US$ 3,861 - - 3,900 | US$ 3,851 US$ 3,899| US$ (48) - -
Fannie Mae ” - - 3,000 US$ 2,994 - - 3,000 US$ 3,000f US$ 3,009| US$ ©)] - -
Fannie Mae ” - - - - 20,300 | US$ 20,269 20,300 US$ 20,301 US$ 20,269| US$ 32 - -
Fannie Mae ” - - - - 11,045| US$ 12,104 11,045| US$ 12,044| US$ 12,104| US$ (60) - -
Fannie Mae ” - - - - 7,500 | US$ 7,500 7,500 | US$ 7,508| US$ 7,500| US$ 8 - -
Fannie Mae " - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,000 3,000 US$ 3,008/ US$ 3,000 US$ 8 - -
Federal Farm Credit Bank " - - 4,000 US$ 3,994 - - 4,000 | US$ 4,002| US$ 3,995| US$ 7 - -
(Continued)
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ame Account Relationship = < | (In Thousands) 2 = S (Foreign =
(In Thousands)| Currencies in Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currencies in | Currencies in =~ .| (In Thousands)| Currencies in
Thousands) (Note 1) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) C#]rrenmes n Thousands)
ousands)
Federal Farm Credit Bank Available-for-sale - - 4,000 US$ 3,984 - | Us$ - 4,000 | US$ 3,986| US$ 3,998| US$ 12) - | Us$ -
financial assets
Federal Farm Credit Bank ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,002 4,000 | US$ 4,003| US$ 4,002| US$ 1 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank ” - - 5,000 US$ 5,007 - - 5,000 US$ 5,007 US$ 5,009| US$ ) - -
Federal Home Loan Bank ” - - 6,800 US$ 6,817 - - 6,800 | US$ 6,817| US$ 6,811| US$ 6 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank " - - 8,000| US$ 8,040 - - 8,000 | US$ 8,033| US$ 7,990| US$ 43 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank ” - - 10,000 US$ 9,998 - - 10,000 | US$ 10,001| US$ 9,985| US$ 16 - -
Federal Home Loan Bank ” - - 8,400| US$ 8,397 - - 8,400 | US$ 8,400| US$ 8,399| US$ 1 - -
Federal Home Ln Bks ” - - 5,000 US$ 5,046 - - 5,000| US$ 5,043| US$ 5,098| US$ (55) - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - 3,732| US$ 3,727 - - 3,340 | US$ 3,340| US$ 3,341| US$ (€)] - -
Federal Home Ln Mtg Corp. ” - - 3,324| US$ 3,453 - - 3,161 | US$ 3,288| US$ 3,360| US$ (72) - -
Federal Home Loan Mtg Corp. ” - - 5,183| US$ 5,168 - - 4,634 | US$ 4,634| US$ 4,632| US$ 2 - -
Fhr 2953 Da ” - - 3,284| US$ 3,466 - - 2,846 | US$ 3,028| US$ 2,993| US$ 35 - -
Fhr 3184 Fa " - - 4,096 | US$ 4,084 - - 3,810 | US$ 3,807| US$ 3,806| US$ 1 - -
Fnma Tha Jan 15 Single Fam ” - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,147 3,000 | US$ 3,142| US$ 3,147| US$ (5) - -
Fnma Tba Feb 15 Single Fam " - - - - 3,000| US$ 3,138 3,000 US$ 3,117| US$ 3,138| US$ (21) - -
Fnma Tba Mar 15 Single Fam ” - - - - 3,000 | US$ 3,110 3,000 US$ 3,140| US$ 3,110| US$ 30 - -
Fnma Tba Apr 15 Single Fam ” - - - - 3,000| US$ 3,131 3,000 US$ 3,164| US$ 3,131 US$ 33 - -
Fnr 2006 60 CO ” - - 3,485| US$ 3,483 - - 3,274 | US$  3,274| US$ 3,272| US$ 2 - -
Fnr 2009 116 A ” - - 4,271| US$ 4,640 - - 3,841 | US$ 4,137 US$ 4,122| US$ 15 - -
Freddie Mac ” - - 5,750 | US$ 5,764 - - 5,750 | US$ 5,761| US$ 5771| US$ (10) - -
Freddie Mac ” - - 4,300| US$ 4,316 - - 4,300 | US$ 4,312| US$ 4,308| US$ 4 - -
Freddie Mac ” - - 10,420| US$ 10,411 - - 10,420 | US$ 10,414| US$ 10,412| US$ 2 - -
Freddie Mac ” - - - - 19,000 | US$ 18,981 19,000 US$ 18,986| US$ 18,981| US$ 5 - -
Freddie Mac ” - - - - 3,650 | US$ 3,549 3,550 | US$ 3,553| US$ 3,549| US$ 4 - -
Freddie Mac ” - - - - 14,200 | US$ 14,196 14,200 | US$ 14,204| US$ 14,196| US$ 8 - -
Gnr 2009 45 AB " - - 4,417 | US$ 4,496 - - 3,082 | US$ 3,129| US$ 3,215| US$ (86) - -
Government Natl Mtg Assn ” - - 3,050 | US$ 3,285 - - 3,050 | US$ 3,202| US$ 3,278| US$ (76) - -
Ngn 2010 R2 1A " - - 3,732| US$ 3,731 - - 3,490 | US$ 3,492| US$ 3,490| US$ 2 - -
Ngn 2011 R4 1A ” - - - - 4,000 | US$ 4,000 3,914 | US$ 3,914| US$ 3,914 - - -
Money market fund
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshgavailable-for-sale - - 12,387| US$ 12,387 764,105| US$ 764,105 776,459 | US$ 776,459| US$ 776,459 - 33 | US$ 33
financial assets

Note 1:  The shares/units and amount of marketaglerties acquired do not include stock dividendsifinvestees.
Note 2: The data for marketable securities dispesetide bonds maturities and redemption by theeiss

Note 3: The ending balance includes the amortinatifopremium/discount on bonds investments, urzedlivaluation gains/losses on financial assetsstation adjustments, equity in earnings/lossesqoity method investees, other adjustments to teng-investment using equity method and
amounts transferred from spin-off.

(Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT COSTS OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAI D-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 4

Company| Types of Transaction Date Transaction Payment Term Counter-party Nature of Prior Transaction of Related Counter-party Price Purpose of Other
Name | Property Amount Relationships| Owner | Relationships | Transfer Date | Amount Reference Acquisition Terms
TSMC Fab January 5,2011to | $ 736,462By the constructiofChina Steel Structure Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A |Public bidding |Manufacturing None
August 28, 2011 progress purpose
Fab January 27, 2011 to 480,672|By the constructiofTasa Construction Corporation - N/A N/A N/A N/A Rigtbidding |Manufacturing None
July 24, 2011 progress purpose
Fab January 27, 2011 to 1,890,720BYy the constructiofDa Cin Construction Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Plibbidding [Manufacturing None
August 27, 2011 progress purpose
Fab January 27, 2011 to 157,500(By the constructiofEdg Corporation Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddg |Manufacturing None
August 27, 2011 progress purpose
Fab January 7, 2011 to 132,950/By the constructiofLead Fu Industrials Corp. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Publxdding |Manufacturing None
August 27, 2011 progress purpose
Fab January 27, 2011 to 1,275,062 By the constructiorf-u Tsu Construction Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Plibbidding |Manufacturing None
September 13, 201 progress purpose
Fak Februar 24, 2011 to 209,44 By the constructiolYankey Engineering Co., Lt - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public biddin¢ |Manufacturing None
September 28, 201 progress purpose
Xintec Fab February 17, 2011 1,050,0B@sed on the Vertex Precision Electronics Inc. - N/A N/A N/A N/A |Pricing report | Manufacturing None
agreement purpose
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TABLE S

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPI TAL
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction NOteS/A;Z%ngbﬁ’:yable or
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships 3 — o Note
Pug::lzzes Amount 'I{oottgl Payment Terms Ur(\;\tkl;z;: € Payr?sgg;erms Ending Balance T/Oottgl
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary Sales $ 175,884 55 | Net 30 days after invoice date - - $28,589 56
GUC Investee accounted for usingSales 2,606,772 1| Net 30 days after monthlyirdps - - 521,398 1
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for usingSales 225,091 - | Net 30 days after monthly ctpsin - - - -
equity method
TSMC Solar Europe Gmblindirect subsidiary Sales 148,898 Net 60 aHier invoice date - - - -
TSMC China Subsidiary Purchases 7,576,707 20 t 30ldays after monthly closing - - (878,485) 8
WaferTech Indirect subsidiary Purchases 5783,5 16 | Net 30 days after monthly closing - - (657,374) 6
VIS Investee accounted for usingPurchases 4,313,015 12 Net 30 days after moalkbdyng - - (1,011,671) 9
equity method
SSMC Investee accounted for usin  |Purchase 2,963,86 8 |Net 30 days after monthly closi - - (342,659 3
equity method
Motech Indirect investee accounted fBurchases 124,673 -|  Net 30 days after montbbiraj - - - -
using the equity method
Xintec OmniVision Parent company of director |Sales 1,427,439 47 | Net 30 days after monthly cloging - - 227,273 49
(represented for Xintec)

Note:  The sales prices and payment terms to refstettbs were not significantly different from tleosf sales to third parties. For other relatedypaansactions, prices and terms were determimedc¢ordance with mutual agreements.
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TABLE 6

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Overdue Amounts Received
. . . Turnover Days ; Allowance for
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships Ending Balance (Note 1) Amount Action Taken in S;gfigguent Bad Debts
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary $ 28,181,040 2 4 $ 8,268,827 - $ 10,855,216 $ -
TSMC China Subsidiary 1,318,300 (Note 2) ,088 Accelerate demand on accounts receivable - -
GUC Investee accounted for using 521,398 35 1,989 Accelerate demand on acsageneivable - -

equity method

Xintec OmniVision Parent company of director 227,273 33 - - - -
(represented for Xintec)

Note 1: The calculation of turnover days excludiagoreceivables from related parties.

Note 2: The ending balance primarily consistedtbépreceivables, which is not applicable for takglation of turnover days.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVEST EES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT IN FLUENCE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 7

Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2011 N Equity in the
et Income Eamings
September 30| December 31, ) (Losses) of the
) : . 2011 2010 Carrying . Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products ; y Shares (In | Percentage of|Value (Foreign p (Note 1) Note
(Foreign (Foreign Thousands) Ownership | Currencies in (Foreign (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in 2
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
TSMC TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgin Islands nJestment activities $ 42,327,245$ 42,327,245 1 100 $ 44,274,921 $ 251,883 $ 251,883 |Subsidiary
TSMC Partners Tortola, British Virgin Islands Iséimg in companies involved in the design, 31,456,130 31,456,130 988,268 100 34,888,811 1,338,749 1,338,749 |Subsidiary
manufacture, and other related business in the
semiconductor industry
TSMC Solar Tai-Chung, Taiwan Engaged in reseag;hieveloping, designing, 11,180,000 - 1,118,000 100 10,847,842 (315,687) (315,687)[Subsidiary
manufacturing and selling renewable energ
and saving related technologies and products
VIS Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Research, design, developnmanufacture, 13,232,288 13,232,288 628,223 38 8,918,553 854,387 36,256 |Investee accounted fi
packaging, testing and sale of memory using equity method
integrated circuits, LSI, VLSI and related pafts
TSMC China Shanghai, China Manufacturing and selling of integrated circuit: 14,356,567 12,180,367 - 100 8,460,740, 1,607,994 1,601,077 |Subsidiary
the order of and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by customers
SSMC Singapore Fabrication and supply of integratecuits 5,120,028 5,120,028 314 39 6,109,136 2,725,548 908,533 |Investee accounted f]
using equity methc
TSMC North America San Jose, California, U.S.A. lligg and marketing of integrated circuits an 333,718 333,718 11,000 100 3,001,878 105,642 105,642 |Subsidiary
semiconductor devices
TSMC SSL Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Engaged in researchidegeloping, designing, 2,270,000 - 227,000 100 2,063,176 (206,747) (206,747)/Subsidiary
manufacturing and selling solid state lightin
devices and related applications products and
systems
Xintec Taoyuan, Taiwan Wafer level chip size pajhg service 1,357,89 1,357,890 94,011 40 1,610,795 176,911 58,598 |Investee with a
controlling financia|
interest
VTAF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new starttgghnology companies 2,024,820 3,565,441 - 52 1,247,111 (98,838) (95,904)|Subsidiary
(Note 4) (Note 4)
GuUC Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Researching, developing, rfesturing, testing 386,568 386,568 46,688 35 1,117,076 411,387 143,423 |Investee accounted fi
and marketing of integrated circt using equity methc
VTAF I Cayman Islanc Investing ir new star-up technology compani 1,16€,47C 1,16€47C - 98 1,022,28 37,05¢ 36,31¢ |Subsidiary
Emerging Alliance Cayman Islands Investing in reart-up technology companie 971,785 971,785 - 99 291,196 (14,350) (14,278)|Subsidiary (Note 3)
TSMC Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands Marketimyengineering supporting activitie: 15,749 15,749 - 100 209,723 27,623 27,623 [Subsidiary (Note 3)
TSMC Japa Yokohama, Jap: Marketing activitie 83,76( 83,76( 6 10¢ 165,63( 4,36( 4,36( |Subsidiary (Note :
TSMC Korea Seoul, Korea Customer service and feahsupporting 13,656 13,656 80 100 22,342 2,323 2,323 |Subsidiary (Note 3)
activities
TSMC Solar Motech Taipei, Taiwan Manufacturing @ates of solar cells, crystallife 6,228,661 6,228,661 87,480 20 5,999,174 (501,870), Note 2 Investee accounted fi
silicon solar cell, and test and measuremen (Note 4) (Note 4) using equity method
instruments and design and construction of
solar power systems
VTAF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new starttgghnology companies 1,795,131 3,565,441 - 47 1,696,911 (98,838) Note 2 Investee accounted fi
(Note 4) (Note 4) using equity method
TSMC Solar Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands invgn solar related business 411,082 25,350 - 100 270,054 (143,371) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
TSMC Solar NA Delaware, U.S.A. Selling and mankgtof solar related products 147,686 60,962 1 100 73,371 (42,826) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
(Note ¢ (Note ¢)
TSMC SSL TSMC Lighting NA Delaware, U.S.A. Sellingd marketing of solid state lighting 3,133 3,133 1 100 3,051 (5) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
related produc (Note 9 (Note 4
(Continued)
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2011 Net Income Equity in the
September 30| December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the I%Ecr)';'sng:)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Busesses and Products Fi(r);iln Fi?elion Shares (In | Percentage of g{) arleuien (Ig\c/)(resites (Note 1) Note
( an ( qn- Thousands) | Ownership ( an an- (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands)
TSMC Partnet TSMC Developmet Delaware, U.S./ Investment activitie US§ 0.001 | US§ 0.001 1 10C US$ 454,66 | US$ 51,40¢ Note2 Subsidiay
VisEra Holding Company Cayman Islands Investingdmpanies involved in the design,| US$ 43,000 US$ 43,000 43,000 49 US$ 89,041 US$ 19,584 Note 2 Investee accounted fo
manufacturing, and other related businesses in using equity method
the semiconductor industry
ISDF Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up tettgy companies Us$ 787 US$ 4,088 787 97 US$ 11,258 US$ 2,921 Note 2 Subsidiary
TSMC Technology Delaware, U.S.A. Engineering suppotivities US$ 0.001 US$ 0.001 1 100 US$ 10,420 US$ 543 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
ISDF I Cayman Islands Investing in new start-eghnology companies US$ 14,153US$ 16,532 14,153 97 US$ 9,988 US$  (356) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
TSMC Canada Ontario, Canada Engineering supptivitaes US$ 2,300| US$ 2,300 2,300 100 US$ 3,864| US$ 298 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
Mcube Inc. (Common Stock) Delaware, U.S.A. Redgatevelopment, and sale of Us$ 800 | US$ 800 5,333 82 - | US$ (10,298 Note 2 Investee accounted fl
micro-semiconductor device using equity methqg
(Note 3’
Mcube Inc. (Preferred Stock) Delaware, U.S.A. Rese development, and sale of US$ 1,000| UsS$ 1,000 1,000 5 - | US$ (10,298 Note 2 Investe accounted fq
micro-semiconductor device using equity methq
(Note 3)
TSMC Development WaferTech Washington, U.S.A. Mautifring, selling, testing and US$ 280,000| US$ 280,000 293,640 100 US$ 215,620 US$ 50,409 Note 2 Subsidiary
computer-aided designing of integrated circpits
and other semiconductor devi
VTAF Il Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Taipei, i&@n Manufacturing and selling of electronic paal | US$ 3,937 US$ 3,937 11,868 57 US$ 1,425| US$ (1,054 Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3,
9y p! g 9 p: y
researching, developing, and testing of R
Growth Fund Cayman Islands Investing in new startechnology companies| US$ 1,780US$ 1,700 - 100 Us$ 835| US$ (91) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing in newrstap technology companies| - - - 62 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
VTAF Il \VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing imew start-up technology companies - - - 31 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
Emerging Alliance VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Bsting in new start-up technology companigs - - - 7 - - Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
TSMC Solar Europe TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Hambuegn@ny Selling of solar related products and priagd EUR 9,900 EUR 100 1 100 EUR 6,398/ EUR (3,502) Note 2 Subsidiary (Note 3)
customer service
Note 1: Equity in earnings/losses of investeeauitelthe effect of unrealized gross profit fromleffes.
Note 2:  The equity in the earnings/losses of testee company is not reflected herein as such mn®already included in the equity in the earsifagses of the investor company.
Note 3:  Equity in earnings/losses was determinsgdh@n the unreviewed financial statements.
Note 4:  In August 2011, the Company adjusted ksstment structure by transferring TSMC Lighting MATSMC SSL and transferring Motech, TSMC Solardpe, TSMC Solar NA and part of VTAF Il to TSMC I8n
(Concluded)
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INFORMATION OF INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 8

Accumulated Accumulated "
Investment Flows
Total Amount of Outflow of Outflow of Carrying Value | - Accumulated
o - - as of Inward
Paid-in Capital Method of Investment from Investment from Percentage of Equity in the September 30 | Remittance of
Investee Company| Main Businesses and Products (Foreign Investment Taiwan as of OUtﬂO\_N Taiwan as of Ownersgi Earnings P 2011 ' Earnings as of
Currencies in January 1, 2011 (US$in Inflow September 30, P (Losses) (USS in Se ten%ber 30
Thousands) (US$ in Thousands) 2011 (US$ in p '
Thousands) 2011
Thousand) Thousands)
TSMC China Manufacturing and selling of $ 14,356,567, (Note 1) $ 12,180,367 $ 2,176,200/ $ $ 14,356,567 100% $ 1,601,077 $ 8,460,740, $ -
integrated circuits at the order| (RMB 3,549,490 (US$ 371,000)(US$ 75,000 (US$ 446,000 (Note 3
and pursuant to product desigh
specifications provided by
customers
Shanghai Walde |Investing innew star-up 961,41: (Note?2) - 71,66( 71,66( 8% (Note4) 152,77( -
Venture Capital technology companies (US$ 31,466 (Uss 2,500 (Uss 2,500 (US$ 5,000
Enterprise

Accumulated Investment in Mainland Ching
as of September 30, 2011
(US$ in Thousand)

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment Commission, MOEA
(US$ in Thousand)

Upper Limit on Investment
(US$ in Thousand)

$ 14,428,227
(US$ 448,500)

$ 19,087,712
(US$ 601,000)

$ 19,087,712
(US$ 601,000)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

TSMC directly invested US$446,000 thousanBSMC China.

Amount was recognized based on the revidimadcial statements.

TSMC indirectly invested in China compahgotigh third region, TSMC Partners.

TSMC Partners invested in financial assatsed at cost, equity in the earnings from whigs not recognized.

-50-




Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOM PANY TRANSACTIONS
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unles®therwise Specified)

TABLE 9

A. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011

Intercompany Transactions

-60 -

Nature of
- ) Percentage of
No. Company Name Counter Party Re(ﬁg?; ir)“p Financial Statements Item Amount (Li:r:% Consolidated Total Gross
Sales or Total Assets

Sale: $ 175,631,35 - 54%

. Receivables from related part 28,158,58 - 4%
TSMC North America L Other receivables from related par 22,45: - -
Payables to related pari 18,98¢ - -
Sales 5,412 - -

Purchase 7,576,70 - 2%
Marketing expense- commissiol 48,00: - -

Sales of property, plant and equipn 2,691,88I - 1%
TSMC China 1 Purchases of property, plant and equipt 70,49 - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipt 99,66 - -
Other receivables from related par 1,318,30! - -
Payables to related part 878,48! - -
Other asse 9,04¢ - -
Marketing expense- commissiol 204,37¢ - -
TSMC Japan L Payables to related part 59,13( - -
Marketing expense- commissiol 278,93t - -
TSMC Europe 1 Research and development expe 32,78: - -
Payables to related pari 39,91 - -
0 TSMC Marketing expense- commissiol 15,23¢ - -
TSMC Korea 1 Payables to related parl 1,407 - -
Sale: 1,158,30: - -
GUC (Note 3) 1 Research and development expe 5,71¢ - -
Research and development expe 379,32¢ - -
TSMC Technology L Payables to related parl 86,05t - -
Sale: 12,69( - -

Puichase 5,753,54 - 2%
Sales of property, plant and equipn 72,88( - -
WaterTech L Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipi 1,46 - -
Other receivables from related par 10,05¢ - -
Payables to related partit 657,37« - -
Research and development expe 134,61: - -
TSMC Canada ! Payables to related pari 17,86¢ - -
Purchase 1,73 - -
Xintec 1 Research and development expe 5,86¢ - -
Manufacturing overhe: 234,39: - -
Payakes to related parti 41,917 - -
TSMC Solar Europe Gmk 1 Sale: 148,89¢ - -

(Continued



Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship . . Terms Percentage of
Financial Statements Item Amount Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets
TSMC Solar 1 Other receivables from related par $ 5,75¢ - -
0 TSMC Interest expens 19,77: - -
TSMC Global 1 Other payables to related par 10,693,90 - 1%
Interest payab 2039¢ - -
. Purchase 296,46. - -
TSMC North America s Manufacturing overhe: 120,40¢ - -
Operating expense 61,36¢ - -
1 GUC (Note 3) GUC-NA 3 Manufacturing overhei 30,58 - -
GUC-Japal 3 Operating expense 21,82¢ - -
GUC-Shangh: 3 Operating expense 8,56¢ - -
5 TSMC Partners TSMC Chine 3 Long-term receivables from related par 7,653,14. - 1%
TSMC Sola 3 Other receivables from related par 168,04 - -
3 |TSMCChine TSMC Partnel 3 Long-term payable<o related partie 7,656,41 - 1%
Interest incom 19,42: - -
4 TSMC Global TSMC 2 Other receivables from related par 10,693,90 - 1%
Interest receivab 20,39¢ - -
5 |TSMC Sola TSMC Partnel 3 Other payables to related par 168,04 - -
Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions fromnpa@mpany to subsidiary.
No. 2 represents the transactions from subsid@patent company.
No. 3 represents the transactions between sulisgliar
Note 2: The sales prices and payment terms ofdatepany sales are not significantly different fribrase to third parties. For other intercompanggegtions, prices and terms are determined in danoe with mutual agreements.
Note 3: The Company has no controlling interest tive financial, operating and personnel hiringgotlecisions of GUC and its subsidiaries sincg 2011. As a result, GUC and its subsidiariesnar&énger consolidated and are

accounted for using the equity method.

(Continued)
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B. For the nine months ended September 30, 2010

Intercompany Transactions

-62 -

c c Nla ture Ohf. Percentage of
No. ompany Name ounter Party Relationship Financial Statement Items Amount Terms Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets

Seles $ 160,415,90 - 50%

. Receivables from related par 24,574,14 - 4%
TSMC North America L Other receivables from related par 25,88¢ - -
Payables to related parl 48,97 - -
Sales 2,04¢ - -

Purchase 6,206,52! - 2%
Marketing expense- commissiol 42,14( - -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipm 38,74t - -
. Acquisition of property, plant and equipm 66,097 - -
TSMC China ! Disposal of property, plant and equipn 383,47. - -
Technical service income 3,68( - -
Other receivables from related par 383,33: - -
Payables to related part 873,98: - -
Deferreddebits 20,82: - -
Marketing expense- commissiol 196,93¢ - -
TSMC Japan 1 Payableso related partie 23,14 - -
Marketing expense- commissiol 321,48: - -
TSMC Europe 1 Research and development expe 18,98¢ - -
Payables to related part 44 47" - -
Marketing expense- commissiol 14,36: - -
o |Tsmc TSMC Korea ! Payables to related parl 1,60¢ - -

Sale: 1,893,20! - 1%
cuc 1 Research and development expe 7,92¢ - -
Receivables from related par 644,28 - -
Payables trelated partie 8,601 - -
Research and development exper 425,89: - -
TSMC Technology L Payables to related part 84,46 - -
Sale: 7,748 - -

Purchase 5,958,52! - 2%
Gain on disposal cother asse 9,65¢ - -
Acquisition of property, plant and epmen 9,62¢ - -
WaterTech 1 Disposal of property, plant and equiprr 22,02« - -
Disposal of other asst 9,65¢ - -
Other receivables from related par 39,95¢ - -
Payables to related partit 671,00 - -
Manufacturingoverhea 214,59( - -
Research and development expe 5,36¢ - -
Xintec 1 Disposal of property, plant and equipn 3,841 - -
Other receivables from related par 3,94¢ - -
Payables to related part 69,58 - -
Research and development expe 141,21 - -
TSMC Canada 1 Payables to related parl 14,64. - -

(Continued




Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No Company Name Counter Party Relationship Terms Percentage of
' Financial Statement ltems Amount Consolidated Total Gross
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Sales or Total Assets

Purchase $ 589,17" - -
TSMC North America 3 Manufacturingoverhea 161,30t - -
Payables to related partit 75,90: - -
Manufacturingoverhea 35,00¢ - -
1 Guc GUC-NA 3 Operating expense 124,92¢ - -
Accrued expens 15,92( - -
Operating expens 32,68’ - -
GUC-Japan 3 Accrued expens: 3,45( - -
GUC-Europe 3 Operating expens 1,467 - -
. Operating expens 16,01« - -
GUC-Shanghai 3 Accrued expens: 2,74 - -

Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions frommpa@mpany to subsidiary.
No. 3 represents the transactions between subisgliar

Note 2: The sales prices and payment terms ofdotepany sales are not significantly different friivase to third parties. For other intercompanggegtions, prices and terms are determined in danoe with mutual agreements.

(Concluded)
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